FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
Express Modular Franchising, LLC

A West Virginia limited liability company
1586-Winehester204 Lutz Avenue
Martinsburg, West Virginia 25404

Tel: (866) 622-2906
franchising@impresamodular.com
www.impresamodular.com

The franchise that we offer is for Impresa Modular, a custom home builder that provides residential home
construction and home improvement design and construction services using modular home components
and building systems, and other services and products. We also offer qualified franchisees the option to
participate in our Impresa Cemwunitylnvestor program and provide construction and development of

residential homes for resale or rent in development communities or development areas using Impresa Modular
services and products.

The total investment necessary to begin operation of an Impresa Modular business as an Impresa Homes
business under a franchise agreement within a single territory is $138,750 to $312,500. This includes
$48,000 that must be paid to the franchisor or its affiliates. The total investment necessary to begin operation
of an Impresa Modular business as an Impresa Communitylnvestor business under a franchise agreement
within a single territory is $542;750511.000 to $991+897,000. This includes $48,000 that must be paid to
the franchisor or its affiliates. The total investment necessary to begin operation of the franchised business
under a franchise agreement within multiple territories is $177,150 to $1,072,200. This includes $86.400
to $223.200 that must be paid to the franchisor or its affiliates.

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and other information
in plain English. Read this disclosure document and all accompanying agreements carefully. You must
receive this disclosure document at least 14 calendar-days before you sign a binding agreement with, or
make any payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale. Note,
however, that no government agency has verified the information contained in this document.

You may wish to receive your disclosure document in another form that is more convenient for you. To
discuss the availability of disclosures in different forms, contact Kenneth B. Semler, Express Modular
Franchising, LLC, 1586-Winehester204 Lutz Avenue, Martinsburg, West Virginia 25404.

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Do not rely on the disclosure document
alone to understand your contract. Read your entire contract carefully. Show your contract and this
disclosure document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant.

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this disclosure document can help you
make up your mind. More information on franchising, such as “A Consumer’s Guide to Buying a
Franchise,” which can help you understand how to use this disclosure document, is available from the
Federal Trade Commission. You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by writing to the FTC at 600
Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, DC 20580. You can also visit the FTC’s home page at
www.fte.gov for additional information. Call your state agency or visit your public library for other sources
of information on franchising.

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.

Issuance Date: Eebruary1+6-20624March 7, 2025

Impresa Modular FDD. February+6:2024March
7.2025



How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to find more

information:

QUESTION

WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION

How much can I earn?

Item 19 may give you information about outlet sales,
costs, profits or losses. You should also try to obtain
this information from others, like current and former
franchisees. You can find their names and contact
information in Item 20 or Exhibits F and G.

How much will I need to invest?

Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the
franchisor or at the franchisor’s direction. Item 7 lists
the initial investment to open. Item 8 describes the
suppliers you must use.

Does the franchisor have the
financial ability to provide
support to my business?

Item 21 or Exhibit D includes financial statements.
Review these statements carefully.

Is the franchise system stable,
growing, or shrinking?

Item 20 summarizes the recent history of the number
of company-owned and franchised outlets.

Will my business be the only
Impresa Modular business in
my area?

Item 12 and the “territory” provisions in the franchise
agreement describe whether the franchisor and other
franchisees can compete with you.

Does the franchisor have a
troubled legal history?

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor or its
management have been involved in material litigation
or bankruptcy proceedings.

What’s it like to be an Impresa
Modular franchisee?

Item 20 or Exhibits F and G list current and former
franchisees. You can contact them to ask about their
experiences.

What else should I know?

These questions are only a few things you should look
for. Review all 23 Items and all Exhibits in this
disclosure document to better understand this
franchise opportunity. See the table of contents.
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What You Need to Know About Franchising Generally

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other fees even
if you are losing money.

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to change
its manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may require you to
make additional investments in your franchise business or may harm your franchise
business.

Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a limited
group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive than
similar items you could buy on your own.

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions. Some
examples may include controlling your location, your access to customers, what you sell,
how you market, and your hours of operation.

Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the
franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory.

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you may
have to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to continue to
operate your franchise business.

When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a
similar business after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your landlord
or other creditors.

Some States Require Registration

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to
register before offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that
the state recommends the franchise or has verified the information in this document. To
find out if your state has a registration requirement, or to contact your state, use the agency
information in Exhibit A.

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be
made to your franchise agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific Addenda. See
the Table of Contents for the location of the State Specific Addenda.

11
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Special Risks to Consider About This Franchise

Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted:

1.

Out-of-State Dispute Resolution. The franchise agreement requires you to resolve
disputes with the franchisor by mediation, arbitration, and/or litigation only in West
Virginia. Out-of-state mediation, arbitration, or litigation may force you to accept a
less favorable settlement for disputes. It may also cost more to mediate, arbitrate, or
litigate with the franchisor in West Virginia than in your own state.

Spousal Liability. Your spouse must sign a document that makes your spouse liable
for all your financial obligations under the franchise agreement even though your
spouse has no ownership interest in the franchise. This guarantee will place both
you and your spouse’s marital and personal assets, perhaps including your house, at
risk if your franchise fails.

. Financial Condition. The franchisor’s financial condition, as reflected in its

financial statements (see Item 21), calls into question the franchisor’s financial
ability to provide services and support to you.

Mandatory Minimum Payments. You must make minimum royalty or advertising
fund payments, regardless of your sales levels. Your inability to make the payments

may result in termination of your franchise and loss of your investment.

Going Concern. The auditor’s report on the franchisor’s financial statements

expresses substantial doubt about the franchisor’s ability to remain in business. This
means that the franchisor may not have the financial resources to provide services

or support to you.

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the “State Specific
Addenda” (if any) to see whether your state requires other risks to be highlighted.

v
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NOTICE REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF MICHIGAN

THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS THAT ARE
SOMETIMES IN FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS. IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS
ARE IN THESE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE PROVISIONS ARE VOID AND CANNOT BE
ENFORCED AGAINST YOU.

The Michigan Franchise Law states in Sec. 445.1527, Sec.27 that each of the following provisions is void
and unenforceable if contained in any documents relating to a franchise:

(a) A prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of franchisees.

(b) A requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver, or estoppel, which
deprives a franchisee of rights and protections, provided in this act. This shall not preclude a franchisee,
after entering into a franchise agreement, from settling any and all claims.

(c) A provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the expiration of its term except
for good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of the franchisee to comply with any lawful
provision of the franchise agreement and to cure such failure after being given written notice thereof
and a reasonable opportunity, which in no event need be more than 30 days, to cure such failure.

(d) A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly compensating the
franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of expiration of the
franchisee’s inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings. Personalized materials which
have no value to the franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings not
reasonably required in the conduct of the franchise business are not subject to compensation. This
subsection applies only if: (i) the term of the franchise is less than five years and (ii) the franchisee is
prohibited by the franchise or other agreement from continuing to conduct substantially the same
business under another trademark, service mark, trade name, logotype, advertising, or other commercial
symbol in the same area subsequent to the expiration of the franchise or the franchisee does not receive
at least six months advance notice of franchisor’s intent not to renew the franchise.

(e) A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms generally available to
other franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances. This section does not require a
renewal provision.

(f) A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state. This shall not
preclude the franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the time of arbitration, to conduct arbitration
at a location outside this state.

(g) A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership of a franchise, except
for good cause. This subdivision does not prevent a franchisor from exercising a right of first refusal to

purchase the franchise. Good cause shall include, but is not limited to:

(i) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the franchisor’s then current reasonable
qualifications or standards.

(i) The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the franchisor or sub-franchisor.

(iii) The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply with all lawful
obligations.
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(iv) The failure of the franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing to the franchisor or
to cure any default in the franchise agreement existing at the time of the proposed transfer.

(h) A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the franchisor items that are not uniquely identified
with the franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants to a franchisor a right of
first refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and conditions as a bona fide third
party willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does this subdivision prohibit a provision that grants
the franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a franchise for the market or appraised value of such
assets if the franchisee has breached the lawful provisions of the franchise agreement and has failed to
cure the breach in the manner provided in subdivision (c).

(i) A provision which permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign, or otherwise transfer
its obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless provision has been made for
providing the required contractual services.

If the franchisor’s most recent financial statements are unaudited and show a net worth of less than
$100,000.00, the franchisee may request the franchisor to arrange for the escrow of initial investment and
other funds paid by the franchisee until the obligations, if any, of the franchisor to provide real estate,
improvements, equipment, inventory, training or other items included in the franchise offering are fulfilled.
At the option of the franchisor, a surety bond may be provided in place of escrow.

THE FACT THAT THERE IS A NOTICE OF THIS OFFERING ON FILE WITH THE ATTORNEY
GENERAL DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION, OR ENDORSEMENT
BY THE ATTORNEY GENERAL.

Any questions regarding this notice should be directed to:

State of Michigan
Department of Attorney General
CONSUMER PROTECTION DIVISION
Attention: Antitrust & Franchise
G. Mennen Williams Building, 1st Floor
525 West Ottawa Street
Lansing, Michigan 48909
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ITEM 1
THE FRANCHISOR AND ANY PARENTS., PREDECESSORS AND AFFILIATES

Express Modular Franchising, LLC, the franchisor of the Impresa Modular franchise is referred to in this
franchise disclosure document (the “Disclosure Document”) as “we”, “us” or “our” as the context requires.
A franchisee is referred to in this Disclosure Document as “you” and “your” as the context requires. If you
are a corporation, partnership or other legal entity (a “Corporate Entity”), our franchise agreement will also
apply to your individual owners, shareholders, members, officers, directors and other principals.

The Franchisor

We are a West Virginia limited liability company established on May 17, 2019. Our principal place of
business is 1586-Winchester204 Lutz Avenue, Martinsburg, West Virginia 25404. We conduct business
under our corporate name Express Modular Franchising, LLC and under the Impresa Modular trade name.
Our business is operating the Impresa Modular franchise system and granting franchises to third parties like
you to develop and operate an Impresa Modular business as either an Impresa Homes business or Impresa
Conmmunitylnvestor business. We began offering franchises on July 11, 2019. Other than as discussed
above, we are not in any other business, we have not conducted business in any other line of business, we
do not conduct or operate a franchised business of the type to be operated by a franchisee, and we have not
offered or sold franchises in any other line of business. We do not have any predecessors and we do not
have any parent company. Our registered agents for service of process are disclosed in Exhibit B of this
Disclosure Document.

The Franchised Business

We license a system (the “System”) for the operation of an Impresa Modular business that provides
residential home construction and home improvement design and construction services using modular home
components and building systems to end-users, and other services and products (the “Approved Services
and Products”) using our proprietary process, and such other programs, materials, equipment, products, and
supplies that we designate (the “System Building Materials and Supplies”), which shall be referred to in
this Disclosure Document as our “Impresa Homes” business model. We also offer qualified franchisees the
option to participate in our alternative business model, Impresa CommunityInvestor. Under our Impresa
Investor program qualified franchisees offer and provide Approved Services and Products within erea
development eﬁc—us%eme&hemesarea lhal is owned or controlled by the franchisee, franchisee owners, and
tty/or franchisee affiliates (a “Development Area”),
whlch shall be referred to in this Disclosure Document as our “Impresa = S
Investor” business model. In order to qualify to be an Impresa Investor franchisee, you must (a) own lhe
Development Area that is granted to you as your Operating Territory, and (b) have at least one owner with
a general contractor license. If you operate the Franchised Business as an Impresa Investor Business, you
will sign the Impresa Investor Addendum, the current version of which is attached as Exhibit 6 of the
Franchise Agreement.

The terms “Business” and “Franchised Business” as used in this Disclosure Document encompass the
operation of an Impresa Modular Business that operates as an Impresa Homes Business or an Impresa

Modular Business that operates-as-an Impresa Communitylnvestor Business.

Your Impresa Modular Business may be managed as a home-based business that, if permitted by law, may
be administratively managed from a home office (a “Sales Office”) provided that you only provide the
Approved Services and Products, on-site, at customer homes located within your designated operating
territory (“Customer Homes”). You may be granted the ability to construct and develop residential homes
for resale or rent (the “Developed Asset”) using our System and Approved Services and Products prior to
being retained by an end-user residential customer (the “Development Construction Services”). The
Developed Asset shall mean each individual residential home and/or dwelling constructed and/or developed
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as a result of an/or related to the Development Construction Services. If a Developed Asset is a part of a
larger project or development comprised of other Developed Assets, it shall, as determined by us in our
reasonable business judgment, nevertheless qualify as a Developed Asset, whether or not it shares common
areas or elements.

The System is presently identified by the Impresa Modular trademark and, such other tradenamestrade-
names, trademarks, service-marks, logos, and trade-dress that we may designate, modify or adopt from time
to time and, as same may or may not be registered with the United States Patent and Trademark Office
(collectively, the “Licensed Marks”). The System features the prominent display of the Licensed Marks,
the Approved Services and Products, and the System Building Materials and Supplies as same may
presently exist and, as we may modify, add to and/or discontinue from time to time. You are required to
purchase the System Building Materials and Supplies through us, our affiliates or our designated approved
suppliers. The System also requires that you operate your Impresa Modular Business in conformity with
the specifications, procedures, criteria and requirements that we designate in our confidential operations
manual and other proprietary manuals that we designate and, as we may, from time to time, supplement
and modify (collectively, the “Manuals”).

Franchise Agreement
You may enter into a Franchise Agreement in the form attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit E

to develop and operate your Impresa Modular Business within a designated operating territory and, in
conformity with the requirements of our System. At the time of signing the Franchise Agreement we will
designate a geographic area comprising your operating territory where you will offer and provide our
approved System Services and Products using only our designated System Building Materials and Supplies.

Our Affiliates

Express Homes, Inc.

Our affiliate Express Homes, Inc. is a West Virginia corporation established on November 17, 2008. This
affiliate’s principal business address is +586—Winchester204 Lutz Avenue, Martinsburg, West Virginia
2540525404, This affiliate uses the Licensed Marks and System for the operation of an Impresa Modular
Business. You will not conduct business directly with this affiliate. This affiliate has not in the past and
does not now offer franchises in any lines of business.

Express Modular IP, LLC

Our affiliate Express Modular IP, LLC is a West Virginia limited liability company established on May 17,
2019. This affiliate’s principal business address is +586-Winchester1 204 Lutz Avenue, Martinsburg, West
Virginia 2540525404. This affiliate is the owner of the Licensed Marks. You will not conduct business
directly with this affiliate. This affiliate has not in the past and does not now offer franchises in any lines
of business.

Impresa Building Systems, Inc.

Our affiliate Impresa Building Systems, Inc. is a West Virginia corporation established on June 4, 2021.
This affiliate’s principal business address is +586-Winchester204 Lutz Avenue, Martinsburg, West Virginia
2540525404. This affiliate supphes modular home components and other System Building Materials and
Supplies to franchisees. —This affiliate has not in
the past and does not now offer franchises in any lines of business.

[-Media Group, LLC

Our affiliate I-Media Group, LLC is a West Virginia limited liability company established on May 28
2021. This affiliate’s principal business address is 204 Lutz Avenue, Martinsburg, West Virginia
25404. This affiliate supplies marketing and CRM software to franchisees. This affiliate has not in the past
and does not now offer franchises in any lines of business.
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Impresa Realty, LLC
Our affiliate Impresa Realty, LLC is a South Carolina limited liability company established on December 8

2022. This affiliate’s principal business address is P.O. Box 51081, Greenwood, South Carolina
29649. This affiliate is a real estate broker and assists clients with the sale and purchase of real property.
This affiliate has not in the past and does not now offer franchises in any lines of business.

Market and Competition

The market for custom homes, residential construction services, and development services is well
established and highly competitive. The products and services of your Impresa Modular Business will be
provided to individuals, families building a custom home, and/or real estate developers and builders
building residential homes for resale or rent. The residential home construction and development industry
is highly fragmented and you will be competing with large national, regional, and local home builders and
contractors. Generally, an Impresa Modular Business is not seasonal but since the construction services
provided by an Impresa Modular Business are provided outdoors, they may be impacted by seasonal
weather conditions.

Industry Specific Laws
Many states and local jurisdictions have laws, rules, and regulations that may apply to the Franchised

Business, including rules and regulations related to health and safety requirements concerning residential
home construction and home improvement design and construction services using modular home
components and building systems. You must evaluate and you must obtain the necessary licenses,
certification, permits and approval necessary to establish and operate the Franchised Business. If your
Impresa Modular Business is an Impresa Investor Business, you are required to obtain a general contractor
license. You must investigate all of these laws. You must check your state, county and local jurisdiction
about these rules and regulations and you should consult with your own legal advisor.

You will also be subject to federal and state laws and regulations that apply to businesses generally,
including rules and regulations involving employment practices, wage and hour laws, immigration and
employment laws. You must review federal minimum wage and overtime laws, as well as similar laws
within your state to ensure compliance with labor and wage laws currently in existence and those that may
later be adopted. You should consult with your attorney concerning these and other local laws, rules and
regulations that may affect the operation of the Franchised Business.

ITEM 2
BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

Kenneth Semler, President and CEO

Kenneth Semler is our founder, President and CEO and he has served in this role since our formation on
May 17, 2019. Since November 17, 2008 and continuing to date, Mr. Semler has been and remains the
President of our affiliate Express Homes, Inc. based in Martinsburg, West Virginia.

James Griffin, Director of Business Development and Marketing

James Griffin is our Director of Business Development and Marketing and he has served in this role since
our formation on May 17, 2019. From 2017 to 2018, Mr. Griffin served as an agentAgent with Managed
Strategic Sales for Wyndham Hotels and Resorts.

David Lippa, Director Business Development and Sales Operations

David Lippa is our Director of Business Development and Sales Operations and he has served in this role
since our formation on May 17, 2019. From 2016 and continuing to date, Mr. Lippa has been and remains
the Northeast/New England region-sales-managerRegion Sales Manager for our affiliate Express Homes,
Inc. in Martinsburg, West Virginia.
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Robert Derrick Morris, Vice President of Construction Operations and Franchise Success Coach
Robert Derrick Morris is our Vice President of Construction Operations and Franchise Success Coach and
he has served in this role since December 1, 2024. From April 2021 to December 2024, Mr. Morris served
as Vice President of Construction Operations/RMF of Connect Homes in Mesa, Arizona. From June 2020
to March 2021, Mr. Morris served as General Manager of America’s Home Place in Macon, Georgia. From
January 2019 to May 2020, Mr. Morris served as Vice President of Construction Operations of Propel
Builders in Maitland, Florida.

ITEM 3
LITIGATION

No litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item.

ITEM 4
BANKRUPTCY

No bankruptcy is required to be disclosed in this Item.

ITEM 5
INITIAL FEES

When you sign a Franchise Agreement you willmust pay to us a non-refundable initial franchise fee of
$48,000—(the “Initial Franchise Fee”). The Initial Franchise Fee is $48.000 for a geographic area that
operates as a single territory with a population of approximately 250,000 people for an Impresa Homes
Business and approximately 3,000,000 people for an Impresa Investor Business (each a “Territory”). The
In1t1a1 Franchlse Fee is fully eamed by us upon payment %e—hmﬁ—Fw%e—Fee—paymefH—feﬁﬂqe—ﬂght

3 3 runity—The method we use to
calculate the In1t1al Franchlse Fee is uniform for all franchlsesexeept that we offer B
the-Initial-under this Disclosure Document, except, as described below.

Multi-Territory and Multi-Franchise Fee-forexisting System-franchisees-whe-enter-intoDiscounts
Subject to market type, availability, and our discretion, at the time of signing your Franchise Agreement,
you may request the right to purchase additional hmpresa—Medularterritories (each referred to as an

“Additional Territory”) to be added to your Operating Territory and operated under one Franchise
Agreement. Each Additional Territory will be comprised of a population of approximately 250,000 people
for an Impresa Homes Business and approximately 3,000,000 people for an Impresa Investor Business.
Your first Territory and, if applicable, each Additional Territory is collectively referred to collectively as
your ““Territories” and, individually, as a “Territory.” When purchasing Additional Territories, the
following initial franchise fees shall apply:

Total Territories Purchased Initial Franchise Fee per Territory w
(Includes First Territory)
1 $48,000 $48.000
2 $43,200 $86,400
3 $40,800 $122.400
4 $39.000 $156,000
5 $37,920 $189,600
6 $37,200 $223.200

Subject to market type, availability, and our discretion, if you elect to enter multiple Franchise Agreements

to-operate-in-additional Operating Territories-or- Communities:, we will apply the same Territory discounts
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as set forth in the above table. The discounts are only applicable for Franchise Agreements signed at the

same time.
[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
ITEM 6
OTHER FEES
Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
(Note 1)
Royalty Nowes2and3) | 304 of Gross Sales, but | Due on the This payment will be paid as directed
not less than $3.500 per | Project by us. If we authorize you to provide
Territory per month Completion Date | Approved Services and Products for a
project outside of your Operating
Territory you must do so pursuant to
our Territory Rules and, irrespective
of the level of your Gross Sales, the
royalty rate for Gross Sales occurring
outside of your Operating Territory is
9% of Gross Sales.
Brand 1% of Gross Sales Due on the This payment will be paid as directed
Development Project by us.

Fund (Notes 2 and 4)

Completion Date

7.2025

Marketing Up to $1,000 per As incurred Will be debited automatically from
Management ™3 | month, currently not your bank account by ACH or other
charged means designated by us. You must
spend not less than $1,000 per month
on pre-approved marketing within
your designated territory. We require
that you use us or our designated
vendor.
Local Marketing Minimum of $1,000 per | Monthly, as You must spend not less than $1,000
(Note 6) month incurred by you | per month on pre-approved business
and negotiated development and marketing within
with local your Operating Territory.
suppliers
Grand Opening $5,000 Prior to opening Prior to the opening of the Franchised
Marketing No¢ 7 Business, you must market and
promote its grand opening. You must
submit to us your grand opening
marketing plan for our approval prior
to opening.
Local and Set by a majority of the | As determined by | Established by cooperative members.
Regional advertising cooperative | cooperative
Advertising members, but not members
Cooperatives N<¥ | exceeding 2% of Gross
5
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Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
(Note 1)
Sales unless all
cooperative members
agree
Business Up to $750 per month, | Due monthly on | This payment will be debited
Management currently $550 per the 5th day of automatically from your business
System License month every month bank through ACH.

(Note 9)

Technology Mt 10

Up to $500 per month,
currently not charged

Due monthly on
the 5th day of
every month

This payment will be debited
automatically from your business
bank through ACH.

Customer Service

and Refunds
(Note 11)

Varies under the
circumstances

On demand

This payment will be debited
automatically from your business
bank through ACH.

Initial Training for
Additional
Employees

Our then current
training fee, currently
$500 per person per
day

On demand

Under our pre-opening initial training
program, we will train you or your
Managing Owner and one of your
designated managers at no additional
charge. If you request that we provide
our initial training program to
additional managers, either before or
after the opening of the Franchised
Business, you must pay our then
current training fee. Initial training is
conducted at facilities that we
designate and you must pay for all
other expenses of your trainees,
including salary, travel and
accommodations.

Supplemental
On-Site Training

Our then current
training fee, currently
$500 per day

On demand

Following participation in our initial
training program and the

opening of the Franchised Business,
if you request that we provide
training or assistance on-site at your
Sales Office, you must pay our then
current fee for each trainer. You must
also reimburse us for our trainer(s)
expenses including travel and
accommodations. There is a two day
minimum for supplemental on-site
training.

Annual
Conference Mot 12)

Our then current
conference fee, not
greater than $1,000 per
person

On demand, prior
to conference

This payment will be debited
automatically from your business
bank through ACH. The fee charged
to you for attendance at the annual
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Type of Fee
(Note 1)

Amount

Due Date

Remarks

conference shall not exceed $1,000
per person.

Payment
Non-Compliance

$150 per occurrence

14 days of
invoice

Payable for failure to timely pay,
when due, a fee or payment due to us
under the Franchise Agreement, plus
interest, costs and legal fees.

Reporting
Non-Compliance

$100 per occurrence

14 days of
invoice

Payable for failure to timely submit
Royalty and Activity Reports, and
other reports and financial statements
as required under Franchise
Agreement.

Operations
Non-Compliance

$450 to $1,000 per
occurrence

14 days of
invoice

Payable for failure to comply with
operational standards as required and
specified under Franchise
Agreement, plus inspection and re-
inspection costs incurred by us.

Interest

18% per annum from
due date

On demand

Applies to past due payments payable
on all overdue amounts, fees,
charges, and payments due to us
under the Franchise Agreement.
Interest rate cannot exceed legal rate
allowed by law and may be adjusted
to reflect same.

Review and Audit

Actual costs

On receipt of
invoice

You must pay to us the costs that we
incur in reviewing and auditing your
records if the review and/or audit
performed by us results in a finding
that you failed to comply with the
terms of your Franchise Agreement.
These fees include the actual costs
that we incur including, fees for
accountants, attorneys, administrative
staff, travel, meals and lodging
expenses.

Quality Assurance
Audit

Actual costs incurred
by us

As invoiced

Payable if we engage a third party to
perform periodic quality assurance
audits, including mystery shopper
programs.

Collection Costs Amount incurred by us | On demand Includes fees and expenses incurred
and Attorney Fees | to collect unpaid by us, including legal demands and
Royalty Fees and other litigation, related to your breach of
fees or sums due from the Franchise Agreement, including
you to us attorney fees, deposition expenses,
expert witness fees, accounting fees
and filing fees.
7
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expenses

Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
(Note 1)
NSF Check Fee of | 5% of amount or $50, On demand Payable if your bank account
Failed Electronic whichever is greater, or possesses insufficient funds and/or
Fund Transfer maximum fee allowed fails to process a payment or transfer
by law related to a fee due from you to us.
Insurance Review | $1,000 On demand You must pay this fee to us or the
party we designate if you purchase
insurance for the Franchised Business
from an insurance broker or
insurance carrier other than the
broker and carrier that we designate
as our preferred insurance provider.
Supplier Review Our actual costs to 14 days of As determined by us, in our
And Testing Fee review a supplier invoice reasonable business judgment. We
suggested by you may require your submission of
samples and specifications.
Non-Compliance Actual fees, costs, and | On demand Fees, costs and expenses incurred by

us as a result of your breach or
noncompliance with the terms of
your Franchise Agreement.

Non-Compliance:

$250 to $750 per month

14 days of our

After 24 months following the date

Customer Reviews invoice you begin operating the Franchised
(Note 13) Business, if your aggregate customer
review ratings fall below a 4.5 stars
out of 5 and/or below a 90% approval
rating you must pay us a non-
compliance fee of between $250 to
$750 per month for each month of
non-compliance.
Management We reserve the right to | 14 days of Payable if we elect to manage the
Service charge a fee of up to invoice Franchised Business due to a failure
$500 per day for by you to have the Franchised
management services if Business managed by an authorized
we need to appoint a Managing Owner or Manager.
manager for the
Franchised Business for
any period of time
Insurance Costs and fees incurred | On demand If you fail to procure or maintain the
Reimbursement in procuring insurance insurance required by the Franchise
Fee on your behalf, Agreement, we may procure this
including all related insurance on your behalf and require
costs, fees and you to reimburse us.
expenses and our
reasonable
administrative fee
8
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Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
(Note 1)
De-Identification Reimbursement for our | On demand If upon termination or expiration, we
Reimbursement actual costs in de- de-identify the Franchised Business’s
identifying the Sales Office or other office, you will
Franchised Business’ reimburse us for any expenses we
Location incur.
Transfer $35,000 Prior to the date All transfers are subject to our
of transfer approval and require the transferee’s
satisfaction of our training
requirements.
Renewal $10;000-forantmpresa | Upon signing If we approve renewal of your
Homres-Businessou renewal Franchise Agreement, at the time of
FHERHORFCHOW Y O L Franchise renewal, you will be required to sign
B e Agreement our then current Franchise
Bustaessteanehise Agreement and pay the renewal fee.
Agreement
$10.000

Explanatory Notes to Item 6

Note 1: Type of Fee / Fees Payable — The above table describes fees and payments that you must pay to us
or our affiliates, or which we or our affiliates may impose or collect on behalf of a third party. All fees are
recurring, payable to us, and are not refundable unless otherwise noted. All fees are uniformly imposed. All
fees payable to us shall be payable subject to our specification and instruction, including, our election to
have all fees automatically drafted from your business bank account or automatically debited or charged to
your business bank account. You will be required to sign an ACH Authorization Form (Franchise
Agreement, Exhibit 4) permitting us to electronically debit your designated bank account for payment of
all fees payable to us (other than the Initial Franchise Fee) as well as any amount owed to us or our affiliated
for goods or services. You must deposit all Gross Sales of your Impresa Modular Business into the
designated bank accounts that are subject to our ACH authorization. You must install and use, at your
expense, the pre-authorized payment, point of sale, automatic payment, automated banking, electronic debit
and/or electronic funds transfer systems that we designate and require in the operation of your Impresa
Modular Business. You must pay all service charges and fees charged to you by your bank so that we may
electronically debit your bank account.

Note 2: Royalty Fees — You must pay a continuing royalty fee (the “Royalty Fee”) equal to 3% (the “Royalty
Rate”) of your Gross Sales (defined below):). but not less than $3.500 per Territory per month. The
minimum monthly Royalty Fee of $3,500 per Territory per month shall not be collected during the first 12
months following the opening of the Franchised Business. The Royalty Fee is due upon the Project
Completion Date, which, for the purposes of this disclosure, shall be the sooner of (i) the date the Developed
Asset is issued a temporary or permanent certificate of occupancy; (ii) the final draw/installment from the
customer loan in connection with the Developed Asset; (iii) we determine, in our reasonable judgment, that
the Developed Asset is ready for occupancy; or (iv) the closing/transfer/lease execution of title of the
Developed Asset (collectively, the “Project Completion Date”).

If, under our Territory Rules (see, Item 12) we authorize you to provide Approved Services and Products
to a customer located outside of your Operating Territory (an “Out of Territory Customer”), you-witl-pay
ayour Royalty FeeRate will be equal to 9% of your Gross Sales related to Out of Territory Customers. If
we permit another franchisee to offer and provide Approved Services and Products to a customer located
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within your Operating Territory, we may pay you 3% of Gross Sales related to the Out of Territory
Customer.

If any federal, state or local tax other than an income tax is imposed on the Royalty Fee which we cannot
directly and, dollar for dollar, offset against taxes required to be paid under any applicable federal or state
laws, you must compensate us in the manner prescribed by us so that the net amount or net effective rate
received by us is not less than that which has been established by the Franchise Agreement and which was
due to us on the effective date of the Franchise Agreement.

Note 3: Gross Sales — “Gross Sales” means the total dollar sales revenues from all business and customers
of your Impresa Modular Business and includes the total gross amount of revenues and sales from whatever
source derived, whether in form of cash, credit, agreements to pay or other consideration including the
actual retail value of any goods or services traded, borrowed, or received by you in exchange for any form
of non-money consideration (whether or not payment is received at the time of the sale), from or derived
by you or any other person or Corporate Entity from business conducted or which started in, on, from or
through your Impresa Modular Business and/or your Operating Territory, whether such business is
conducted in compliance with or in violation of the terms of the Franchise Agreement. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, with respect to the Development Construction Services, “Gross Sales” shall be the greater of
either: (i) the gross sales price of each Developed Asset sold to an end-user customer; (ii) the sales price
listed on lines 101 and 401 on the HUD-1 settlement statement; or (iii) the fair market value of the
Developed Asset. The gross sales price for each Developed Asset shall include all improvements made to
the Developed Asset. In the event the Developed Asset is not sold to an end-user within 12 months of
Substantial Completion of the Developed Asset or upon expiration or termination of the Franchise
Agreement, we may elect to utilize the fair market value of the Developed Asset for purposes of determining
Gross Sales. For purposes of this disclosure, the term “Substantial Completion” shall mean that all work is
complete except for minor punch list items. Gross Sales include the total gross amount of revenues and
sales from whatever source derived from and/or derived by you (including any person and/or Corporate
Entity acting on your behalf) from business conducted within and/or outside your Operating Territory that
is related to your Impresa Modular Business and/or a competitive business located and/or operated within
your Operating Territory, outside your Operating Territory, and/or otherwise. Gross Sales do not include:
(i) the fair market value of the land on which the Developed Asset was built upon; and (ii) sales or use taxes
collected by you.

Note 4: Brand Development Fund — You must pay a continuing brand development fund fee in an amount
up to 1% of your Gross Sales (the “Brand Development Fund”).

Note 5: Marketing Management — You must pay us or our designated provider a fee equal to $1,000 per
month for marketing services, including the digital marketing management of your Impresa Modular
Business. Currently, we do not charge this fee but reserve the right to do so in the future.

Note 6: Local Marketing — On a monthly and on-going basis are required to spend not less than $1,000 per
month toward the marketing and promotion of your Impresa Modular Business. Your local marketing
efforts and expenditures must be targeted to a market comprised of your Operating Territory and may only
include media, networking, business development, public relations and other forms of business
development that we designate and pre-approve.

Note 7: Grand Opening Marketing — You must spend not less than $5,000 toward the marketing and
promotion of the grand opening of your Impresa Modular Business. Your marketing must be pre-approved
by us.

Note 8: Local and Regional Advertising Cooperatives — If two or more Impresa Modular Businesses are
operating within a market designated by us we reserve the right to establish and require your participation
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in a local or regional advertising cooperative within a geographic area, region, or market designated by us.
If a local or regional advertising cooperative is established within a market that includes your Impresa
Modular Business, you will be required to participate in the cooperative and make on-going payments to
the cooperative in such amounts and subject to such caps as established by the cooperative members. We
anticipate that each Impresa Modular Business franchisee will have one vote for each Impresa Modular
Business location located within the cooperative market and that cooperative decisions shall be made based
on approval of a simple majority vote based on a quorum of not less than 25% of the designated cooperative
members. Contributions to a local or regional cooperative that we designate shall count toward the
satisfaction of your local marketing obligations and shall not exceed the amount of your monthly minimum
local marketing obligation and shall not exceed 2% of Gross Sales.

Note 9: Business Management System License — You will be required to use the business management
software-system that we designate and as we may modify from time to time (the “Business Management
System”). The Business Management System is a cloud based software system that includes customer
information, customer lists, and other tools for engaging, monitoring and billing customers You are required
to pay to us or to our designated supplier an on-going monthly license fee in an amount not exceeding $750
per month.

Note 10: Technology Fee — The continuing monthly technology fee is an administrative fee and is not
associated with any particular service (the “Technology Fee”). Currently we do not charge a monthly
Technology Fee but reserve the right to implement a monthly technology fee not exceeding $500 per month.

Note 11: Customer Service and Refunds — This fee will be based on the costs incurred by us, including
refunds and/or credits that we may undertake on behalf of a customer that was not satisfied with the services
or products provided by your Impresa Modular Business. You must guarantee your services to your
customers. If we determine that your customer is entitled to reimbursement of fees paid to you we may
reimburse your customer directly. You must reimburse us for the amounts that we reimburse your customer.

Note 12: Annual Conference — If we establish a franchisee annual conference you or your Managing Owner
must attend the conference on the dates and at the location that we designate. We may charge you an Annual
Conference fee in an amount not exceeding $1,000 per person. If you fail to attend the Annual System
Conference, we may charge you the Annual Conference fee amount, not exceeding $1,000.

Note 13: Non-Compliance Fee: Customer Reviews — After 24 months following the date you begin
operating the Franchised Business, you must subscribe to and participate in the customer review tracking
and reputation management services and providers that we designate. If your customer review or customer
satisfaction ratings, as measured across the review platforms that we designate, go below a 4.5 stars out of
5 stars and/or a 90% positive satisfaction rating then you must pay to us a customer review non-compliance
fee of $250 for each and every month of non-compliance. If, a condition of non-compliance occurs for more
than three months then we may increase this non-compliance fee to a monthly fee of not more than $750
per month.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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ITEM 7

ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

A. Franchise Agreement — Impresa Homes Business (Single Territory)

Type of Method of To Whom Payment is
Expenditure Aot Payment W0 10 Made
(Note 1)
Initial Franchise | $48,000 Lump sum When you sign Us
Fee MNote2) the Franchise
Agreement
Construction and | $10,000 — $45,000 Varies Prior to opening | Approved third party
Leasehold suppliers and vendors,
Improvements subject to our
(Note 3) specifications
Furniture, $5,000 — $20,000 As billed As incurred Approved third party
Fixtures and suppliers and vendors,
Equipment e 4 subject to our
specifications
Commercial $5,000 — $10,000 Lump sum Prior to opening | Third party automobile
Vehicle Note ) and continuing leasing company or
on a monthly manufacturer but
basis subject to our
specifications and
approval
Computer, $2,000 — $4,000 As billed As incurred Approved third party
Software, and suppliers and vendors,
System (Nt ©) subject to our
specifications
Prepaid Rent and | $5,000 — $10,000 Lump sum Varies Third party landlord
Lease Deposits
(Note 7)
Utility Deposits $1,000 — $2,500 As billed Before opening Utility companies
(Note 8)
12
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Type of Method of To Whom Payment is
Expenditure Ao Payment Wihem DS Made
(Note 1)

Insurance $2,000 — $5,000 As billed Varies Insurance companies
Deposits and
Premiums Not¢?)
Travel for Initial | $3,000 — $5,000 As incurred Before opening Third party
Training Mot 10)
Grand Opening $5,000 In accordance As incurred but Approved third party
Marketing with your grand | prior to opening | suppliers and vendors,
Expense Mt 1D opening subject to our

marketing plan

specifications and
approval

Professional Fees | $1,000 — $3,500 As billed Before opening Third parties,

(Note 12) including attorneys,
accountants and
architects

Business $1,000 — $3,000 Lump sum Before opening Government

Licenses and authorities

Permits (Note 13)

Printing, $750 - $1,500 As billed Before opening Third party

Stationery, and

Office Supplies

(Note 14)

Additional Funds | $50,000 — $150,000 As incurred Before opening Us, utilities approved

— Initial Period of vendors, employees

Three Months and other providers of

(Note 15)

services and/or goods
necessary for the
operation of the
Franchised Business

Total Estimate

$138,750 — $312,500

Explanatory Notes to Item 7 for an Impresa Homes Business

Note 1: About Your Estimated Initial Investment —Yeu-should-earefully review these-estimates-with-your

siness. g g SOT : : g se-Ag :
These estimates do not include interest and financing charges that you may incur, and they do not include
royalties, marketing development and other continuing fees that you will be required to pay to us. Payments
are non-refundable unless otherwise noted. We do not offer direct or indirect financing. The total estimates
are based on experience of our affiliate in establishing an Impresa Modular Business. We recommend that
you use these categories and estimates as a guide to develop your own business plan and budget and
investigate specific costs in your area.
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Note 2: Initial Franchise Fee — The Initial Franchise Fee for an Impresa Homes Business is $48,000. All
fees paid to us for your Initial Franchise Fee are non-refundable. There are no refunds under any other
circumstances, including if you breach the Franchise Agreement and we terminate the Franchise
Agreement.

Note 3: Construction and Leasehold Improvements — Within six months of the opening of your Impresa
Modular Business you must establish and open a Sales Office. You must obtain our approval of your Sales
Office Location. A Sales Office location may be established as a back-end office within a commercial office
facility such as a class “B” office building, or at a commercial retail business location such as a strip
shopping center. We have based our estimates on the assumption that the typical square footage for a Sales
Office Location will range from 350 to 1,200 square feet and that the office facility will already be in a suitable
condition for your office facility and will require only minor leasehold improvements. We have not included
estimates for the construction of a spec home that may or may not be used by you for your Sales Office as we
do not require your construction of a spec home.

Note 4: Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment — If you elect to establish a Sales Office you will be required to
purchase certain types of furniture, fixtures and equipment for the Franchised Business. Among other
things, you will be required to purchase office furniture, and interior sign. The costs for furniture and fixtures
may differ depending on the material quality and on other factors.

Note 5: Commercial Vehicle — The estimate that we provided is an estimate of only the first three months
of lease installment payments or purchase finance financing for your service vehicle. This expense will be
a monthly on-going expense. You are required to utilize a designated vehicle in connection with the day to
day operations of the Franchised Business, including driving to and from meetings with customers and
prospective customers of the Franchised Business. The vehicle must meet our standards and specifications
and must be a relatively new vehicle in clean condition. The vehicle must be wrapped with Impresa Modular
branding and design features that we approve. We anticipate that you will be leasing this vehicle and that
you will be required to maintain commercial automobile insurance. Our estimate assumes that you will
initially lease and operate one Impresa Modular vehicle. The estimate provided is for the three months of
lease payments for one Impresa Modular vehicle. These payments (i.e., your monthly fee) will be an on-
going expense throughout the operation of the Franchised Business. If you add more Impresa Modular
vehicles this fee will increase by a multiple of each additional vehicle. On-going fuel charges and vehicle
maintenance charges are not included in this estimate. We designate and must approve of the branding wrap
that is installed and wrapped on your approved vehicles.

Note 6: Computer, Software, and System — You will be required to purchase a notebook computer for the
operations of the Franchised Business. You will be required to utilize the Business Management System and
pay the monthly access fee. You may be required to use certain additional software or CRM systems as part
of the Franchised Business.

Note 7: Prepaid Rent and Lease Deposits — Within six months of the opening of your Impresa Modular
Business you must lease or otherwise provide a suitable office (in a commercial or residential building you
lease or own) for the operations of the Franchised Business. Your Sales Office may be established as a
back-end office within a commercial office facility such as a class “B” office building, or at a commercial
retail business location such as a strip shopping center. We have based our estimates on the assumption that
the typical square footage for a Sales Office Location will range from 350 to 1,200 square feet. Your facility
must be approved by us in writing. You may secure a larger facility but it will increase your operating costs.
You will be required to pay the landlord a security deposit that will be calculated based upon a number of
months’ rent that the landlord requires to be held as security. The amount of your security deposit is
something that you will negotiate directly with the landlord and will vary significantly based on a number
of factors, including the desirability of your leased location and your own negotiations. This estimate does
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not include the purchase of real property should you elect to purchase the facility for the Franchised
Business.

Note 8: Utility Deposits — If you establish a Sales Office, to secure the appropriate utilities required for the
operation of your Impresa Modular Business, including gas, electric, water, sewer and internet access, you
will be required to pay upfront deposits to each applicable utility company.

Note 9: Insurance Deposits and Premiums — You are required to maintain certain insurance respecting the
operations of your Impresa Modular Business. Your actual payments for insurance and the timing of those
payments will be determined based on your agreement with your insurance company and agent. The cost
of your insurance coverage will be based on factors outside of our control. The amount charged for
insurance coverage may be significantly more or less than our estimate. This estimate is for the cost of an
initial deposit in order to obtain the minimum required insurance. You should check with your local carrier
for actual premium quotes and costs, as well as the actual cost of the deposit. The cost of coverage will vary
based on the area in which your Impresa Modular Business will be located, your experience with the insurance
carrier, the loss experience of the carrier and other factors beyond our control. We recommend that you
consult with your insurance agent before signing a Franchise Agreement.

Note 10: Travel for Initial Training — Prior to opening your Impresa Modular Business you must complete
our pre-opening training program. We do not charge a fee for our pre-opening initial training, however you
will incur travel and lodging costs associated with attending our pre-opening training program. This
estimate is for the travel, food, and lodging expenses for you and your staff. You are responsible for the
travel, food, and lodging expenses that you and your participating managers will incur when you attend our
training program and the salary and benefit costs of your attendees. Costs vary due to distances from your
location to our training facility and the quality of the food and lodging you choose. Other factors include
seasonal variations in the price of travel and lodging expenses, general economic conditions, and your
persistence in obtaining the best prices available.

This estimate is for the cost for you or your Managing Owner and one designated manager (two individuals
in total) to attend the initial training program held in Martinsburg, West Virginia. We do not charge tuition
for training fee for you or your designated Managing Owner and one of your designated managers. You will
be responsible for all costs associated with attending the initial training program for you and your staff. This
estimate does not include the cost of labor.

Note 11: Grand Opening Marketing Expense — Marketing expenses vary and will depend on your
geographic market and the type of media that you utilize to market the grand opening of your Impresa
Modular Business. Your marketing efforts should be directed to communities located within your Operating
Territory and must be approved by us. Prior to and during the initial three months of operating your Impresa
Modular Business you must commit and spend no less than $5,000 toward the marketing and promotion of
your Impresa Modular Business. All advertisements, marketing and promotional materials must be
approved by us.

Note 12: Professional Fees — These estimates are for costs associated with the engagement of professionals
such as attorneys and accountants to advise you prior to the signing of your Franchise Agreement and to assist
with the start-up of your Impresa Modular Business. We recommend that you seek the assistance of
professional advisors when evaluating this franchise opportunity and this Disclosure Document. It is also
advisable to consult these professionals to review any lease and other contracts that you will enter into as part
of the development and operation of the Franchised Business.

Note 13: Business Licenses and Permits — You must apply for, obtain and maintain all required permits and
licenses necessary to operate the Franchised Business. The licenses will vary depending on local, municipal,
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county and state regulations. All licensing fees are paid directly to the governmental authorities when
incurred and are due prior to opening the Franchised Business.

Note 14: Printing, Stationery, and Office Supplies — This figure is primarily for printing a start-up order of
stationery, business cards, brochures, branded apparel and general office supplies.

Note 15: Additional Funds — You will need additional capital to support on-going businesses expenses,
including business expenses such as payroll, inventory, marketing, rent and utilities. This estimate is only
to cover on-going expenses during the initial start-up phase of the Franchised Business comprised of the
first three months following the opening of your Impresa Homes Business. This is only an estimate and we
cannot assure you that you will not incur additional expenses during the initial start-up phase or that you
will not require additional capital (not included in this estimate) beyond the three month initial start-up
phase. We have relied on the experiences of our affiliate, Express Homes, Inc. in making this estimate. If
you increase the geographic size of your Operating Territory by adding Additional Territories your costs
will be higher.

B. Franchise Agreement — Impresa Community Programlnvestor (Single Territory)

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

Type of Method of To Whom Payment is
Expenditure ey Payment VRIS Made
(Note 1)
Initial Franchise | $48,000 Lump sum When you sign Us
Fee MNote2) the Franchise
Agreement with
Impresa Investor
Addendum
Developed Lots $400,000 — $660,000 As incurred Prior to opening | Land sellers, land
(Note3) developers,
government
authorities, attorneys
Woted) specifications
F’({‘”F{" :!Hd < ’pﬁ e\Fv :!Hd Y (‘HE“@F',
E X '; ment Nete-5) 'H]’.S'{t HE
Vehicle-(Note®) and-continuing leasing company-or
approval
Computer, $2,000 — $4,000 As billed As incurred Approved third party
Software, and suppliers and vendors,
System (Note 74)
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Type of Method of To Whom Payment is
Expenditure R Payment WAL Made
(Note 1)

subject to our
specifications

(Note 8)

: 500 Thilled Bek - Tin =

{Note 9)

Insurance $2,000 — $10,000 As billed Varies Insurance companies

Deposits and

Premiums No'©

105)

Travel for Initial | $3,000 — $5,000 As incurred Before opening Third party

Training Note 10

¢ ;F.]Hd ( ’ﬁE‘H'H g Sé;ggg e (‘E‘@Fd']nf‘f‘ A S ‘HF IF‘F(‘(; b 4 A ppH’, (\d ttid P']th

Expense-Notet?) opening subjeet-to-our
approval

Professional Fees | $1,000 —$10,000 As billed Before opening Third parties,

(Note 137) including attorneys;
and accountants;-and
architeets

Business $5,000 — $10,000 Lump sum Before opening Government

Licenses and authorities

Permits Note 14)

Note bRy

Additional Funds | $50,000 — $150,000 As incurred Before opening Us, utilities approved

— Initial Period of vendors, employees

Three Months and other providers of

(Note 169)

services and/or goods
necessary for the
operation of the
Franchised Business

Total Estimate

$542,750—8991511.,000 — $897,000

7,2025
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Note 1: About Your Estlmated In1t1al Investment %ﬂ%&eﬁeﬁﬂky&eﬁ%&heseestﬂ&atem&hﬁeu{

These estlmates do not 1nc1ude 1nterest and ﬁnancmg charges that you may incur, and they do not 1nclude
royalties, marketing development and other continuing fees that you will be required to pay to us. Payments
are non-refundable unless otherwise noted. We do not offer direct or indirect financing. The total estimates
are based on standard industry pricing. We recommend that you use these categories and estimates as a guide
to develop your own business plan and budget and investigate specific costs in your area. This Item 7 Table
B assumes that you have pre-develeped—otsa Development Area on which to develop your Impresa
Communitylnvestor Business.

Note 2: Initial Franchise Fee — The Initial Franchise Fee for an Impresa Cemmunitylnvestor Business is
$48,000. All fees paid to us for your Initial Franchise Fee are non-refundable. There are no refunds under
any other circumstances, including if you breach the Franchise Agreement and we terminate the Franchise
Agreement.

Note 3: DevelopedLotsDevelopment Area — In operating an Impresa Communitylnvestor Business you
will incur various costs related to the developedlots-onwhichto-build-yourCommunityDevelopment Area,
as well as related costs including professional fees, due diligence, permit, or zoning approval costs. Thls
estimate assumes that you have pre-developed letsDevelopment Area on which to develop your Impresa
Cemmunitylnvestor Business and that your developed-etsmeetDevelopment Area meets all required local
zoning, permitting, and land entitlement requirements. This estimate also includes the cost of a deposit for
purchasing a developedlotDevelopment Area from a land developer if you do not already have a developed
lot-on-which-to-develop-your Impresa-CommunityDevelopment Area, which is typically an amount equal
to 5% to 10% of the total cost of the developedtotDevelopment Area. You will incur additional costs for
due diligence, profess1onal fees, and addltlonal fees that may be owed to local or governmental authorities.
This estimate a ) and-does not include costs
of purchasing land dlrectly on whlch to develop your GemmamtyDevelopment Area. Further zoning
approval may be required in certain municipalities before modular construction may begin. This estimate
may vary depending on the size of your Development Area and may be higher if your Development Area
is a larger investment.
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Nete-7Note 4: Computer, Software, and System — You will be required to purchase a notebook computer for
the operations of the Franchised Business. You will be required to utilize the Business Management System
and pay the monthly access fee. You may be required to use certain additional software or CRM systems as
part of the Franchised Business.

Nete—+0Note 5: Insurance Deposits and Premiums — You are required to maintain certain insurance

respecting the operations of your Impresa Modular Business. Your actual payments for insurance and the
timing of those payments will be determined based on your agreement with your insurance company and
agent. The cost of your insurance coverage will be based on factors outside of our control. The amount
charged for insurance coverage may be significantly more or less than our estimate. This estimate is for the
cost of an initial deposit in order to obtain the minimum required insurance. You should check with your local
carrier for actual premium quotes and costs, as well as the actual cost of the deposit. The cost of coverage will
vary based on the area in which your Impresa Modular Business will be located, your experience with the
insurance carrier, the loss experience of the carrier and other factors beyond our control. We recommend that
you consult with your insurance agent before signing a Franchise Agreement.

Note H6: Travel for Initial Training — Prior to opening your Impresa Modular Business you must complete
our pre-opening training program. We do not charge a fee for our pre-opening initial training, however you
will incur travel and lodging costs associated with attending our pre-opening training program. This
estimate is for the travel, food, and lodging expenses for you and your staff. You are responsible for the
travel, food, and lodging expenses that you and your participating managers will incur when you attend our
training program and the salary and benefit costs of your attendees. Costs vary due to distances from your
location to our training facility and the quality of the food and lodging you choose. Other factors include
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seasonal variations in the price of travel and lodging expenses, general economic conditions, and your
persistence in obtaining the best prices available.

This estimate is for the cost for you or your Managing Owner and one designated manager (two individuals
in total) to attend the initial training program held in Martinsburg, West Virginia. We do not charge tuition
for training fee for you or your designated Managing Owner and one of your designated managers. You will
be responsible for all costs associated with attending the initial training program for you and your staff. This
estimate does not include the cost of labor.

Nete137: Professional Fees — These estimates are for costs associated with the engagement of professionals

such as attorneys and accountants to advise you prior to the signing of your Franchise Agreement and to assist
with the start-up of your Impresa Modular Business. We recommend that you seek the assistance of
professional advisors when evaluating this franchise opportunity and this Disclosure Document. It is also
advisable to consult these professionals to review any lease and other contracts that you will enter into as part
of the development and operation of the Franchised Business.

Note 148: Business Licenses and Permits — You must apply for, obtain and maintain all required permits and
licenses necessary to operate the Franchised Business. The licenses will vary depending on local, municipal,
county and state regulations. All licensing fees are paid directly to the governmental authorities when
incurred and are due prior to opening the Franchised Business. This estimate includes the cost of due
diligence and land entitlement in connection with your Impresa Communitylnvestor.

Nete—+6Note 9: Additional Funds — You will need additional capital to support on-going businesses

expenses, including business expenses such as payroll, inventory, marketing, rent and utilities. This
estimate is only to cover on-going expenses during the initial start-up phase of the Franchised Business
comprised of the first three months following the opening of your Impresa Cemmunitylnvestor Business.
This is only an estimate and we cannot assure you that you will not incur additional expenses during the
initial start-up phase or that you will not require additional capital (not included in this estimate) beyond
the three month initial start-up phase. We have relied on industry pricing in making this estimate. If you
increase the geographic size of your Operating Territory by adding Additional Territories your costs will
be higher.

C. Impresa Modular Business (Multiple Territories)

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

Type of Expenditure Amount Method of When Due To Whom Whom
Payment Payment is Made

Initial Franchise Fee Not¢ D $86,400 — $223,200 Lump sum When Franchise Us
Agreement is signed
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Estimated Initial Investment to

$90.750 — $849.000

Open Single Territory

Estimated Initial Investment is based on estimate contained
in Table A of this Item 7 for a single Territory, less the Initial
Franchise Fee reported in Table A.

Total Estimate N°t2)

$177.150 — $1,072,200

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Explanatory Notes to Item 7 for Multiple Territories

Note 1: Initial Franchise Fee — The Initial Franchise Fee for an operating territory comprised of a single
Territory is $48.000. If you elect to increase the size of your operating territory by adding Additional

Territories, the total Initial Franchise Fee will range from a low of $86.400 for a total of two Territories to
$223.200 for a total of six Territories.

Note 2: Total Estimate — This is the total estimated investment for the development of an operating territory
comprising multiple Territories ranging from two Territories to six Territories. This estimate includes the
operation of a single Impresa Modular authorized service vehicle. Over time, depending on the number of
Territories, and the growth of your Impresa Modular Business you may require the operation of multiple
Impresa Modular authorized service vehicles.

ITEM 8
RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

You may only offer and sell the Approved Services and Products that we designate and you may only use
those products, supplies, equipment, technology systems, and services that we authorize and designate in
writing. To ensure that our standards and specifications of quality, service and System development are
maintained, you must operate your Impresa Modular Business in strict conformity with the Franchise
Agreement and the methods, standards, specifications and sources of supply that we designate and prescribe
in the Manuals.

Source Restricted Purchases and Leases — Generally

We require that you purchase or lease certain source restricted goods and services for the development and
operation of your Impresa Modular Business. Source restricted goods and services are goods and services
that must meet our specifications and/or must be purchased from an approved or designated supplier. We
may designate a supplier (which may include us or our affiliates) as the exclusive supplier for the System.
Our specifications and list of approved and designated suppliers is contained in our Manuals. We will notify
you of any changes to our specifications or list of approved or designated suppliers. We may notify you of
these changes in various ways, including written or electronic correspondence, amendments and updates to
our Manuals, verbal and other forms of communication. We formulate and modify our standards and
specifications for products and services based on our industry experience and our management decisions
as to the overall operation and expansion of the System. If we have previously approved a supplier, and
their standards fall below our designated standards, we will revoke our approval. We will notify you in
writing of us revoking our approval.

Suppliers and Supplier Criteria

We may designate ourselves and our affiliates as exclusive suppliers of source restricted goods and services.
We may designate ourselves or a third party as exclusive supplier irrespective of the existence of competing
suppliers. If, in the Manuals, we do not designate a supplier for a particular item, you will purchase all such
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products, supplies and services from suppliers who meet our specifications and standards.

Our affiliate, Impresa Building Systems, Inc. is currently designated as an approved supplier of modular
home components and other System Building Materials and Supplies. Exeept—forlmpresa—Building
Systems;—neOur_affiliate [-Media Group, LLC is currently designated as an approved supplier of
marketing and CRM software to franchisees. Our affiliate Impresa Realty, LLC is a real estate broker and
assists clients with the sale and purchase of real property. Except for Impresa Building Systems, Inc., I-
Media Group, LLC. and Impresa Realty, LLC currently, we are not and our affiliates are not approved
suppliers of the source restricted goods and services identified below. Except as to Kenneth Semler, no
officer of ours currently owns an interest in any of our designated suppliers. During the fiscal year ending
December 31, 20242023, our affiliate Impresa Building Systems, Inc—earned-$1851H878n., [-Media
Group, LLC, and Impresa Realty, LLC did not earn any revenue from franchisee purchases.

If you want to purchase or lease a source restricted item from a supplier that has not been previously
approved or designated by us in writing, you must send us a written request for approval and submit
additional information that we may request. We may charge you a supplier review and testing fee and we
may request that you send us samples from the supplier for testing and documentation from the supplier for
evaluation. We may also require, subject to our discretion, that we be allowed to inspect the supplier’s
facilities. We will notify you of our approval or disapproval within a reasonable time, not to exceed 60
days, after we receive your written request for approval and all additional information and samples that we
may request. We may, in our discretion, withhold our approval. When evaluating the approval of a particular
supplier, among other things, we consider: whether the supplier can demonstrate to our reasonable
satisfaction the ability to meet our standards, specifications and production requirements, the suppliers
quality control, whether or not we are the exclusive supplier of the particular item, whether or not our
affiliate or affiliates are the exclusive supplier of the particular item, and whether or not the suppliers
approval, in our sole determination, will allow us to advance the overall interests of the System.

We estimate that your purchase of goods and services from suppliers according to our specifications,
including your purchase of goods or services from our designated exclusive suppliers, to represent
approximately 25% of your total purchases and leases in establishing the Franchised Business and
approximately 75% of the on-going operating expenses of your Franchised Business.

We currently require that you purchase or lease the following source restricted goods and services from
either us or our designated supplier:

1. System Building Materials and Supplies — You must use our affiliates and our designated suppliers and
manufacturers of modular components and construction materials. Your Impresa Modular Business may
only offer, sell and construct residential and residential home improvements using modular construction
components from our affiliates and/or designated suppliers and manufacturers based on those residential
home designs, plans, and specifications that we designate. You must purchase all of your modular home
construction components and materials and all other construction and building supplies exclusively from
our affiliates and/or the manufacturers and suppliers that we designate.

2. Branded Items and Marketing Materials — All materials bearing the Licensed Marks including, but not
limited to, stationary, business cards, brochures, apparel, signs and displays, must meet our standards and
specifications and must be purchased from either us directly or our designated suppliers. All of your
marketing materials must comply with our standards and specifications and must be approved by us
before you use them. You may market your Impresa Modular Business through approved digital media
and social media platforms provided that you do so in accordance with our digital media and social media
policies. You must purchase all branded marketing materials from either us or our designated exclusive
supplier. We may require that you exclusively use, at your cost, our designated supplier for social and
digital media marketing services and exclusively use, at your cost, our social media platforms, vendors
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and marketing channels.

3. Business Management System and Computer Equipment — You are required to utilize the Business
Management System that we designate. You will be required to continuously enter, maintain and update
your business and financial information in the Business Management System. At all times, the Business
Management System must be maintained on a desktop computer and on a portable tablet computer to be
maintained by each service vehicle that you utilize. At our election, the data and information related to
your Impresa Modular Business may be maintained on a cloud-based server, servers hosted by us or as
otherwise designated by us.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

4. Credit Card Processing — You must use our designated supplier and vendor for credit card processing
which may be integrated with the point of sale system that we designate. Credit card processing fees will,
generally, be based on a percentage of all credit card processed Gross Sales.

5. Service Vehicles — Your service vehicles must meet our standards and specifications, be designated
and insured for commercial purposed, and be wrapped with our approved branding and vehicle wrap.
You may only operate your Impresa Modular Business from service vehicles that meet our specifications
and approved wrap.

6. Insurance — You must obtain the insurance coverage that we require from time to time as presently
disclosed in the Manuals and as we may modify. All insurance policies required under your Franchise
Agreement and as set forth in the Franchise Agreement must be written by a responsible carrier,
reasonably acceptable to us and all insurance (excluding workers’ compensation) must name us, our
officers, directors, shareholders, partners, agents, representatives and independent contractors as
additional insureds. The insurance policies must include a provision that the insurance carrier must
provide us with no less than 30 days’ prior written notice in the event of a material alteration to, or
cancellation of, any insurance policy. A certificate of insurance must be furnished by you to use at the
earlier of 90 days after the Effective Date of the Franchise Agreement or prior to the commencement of
our initial training program. Insurance coverage must be at least as comprehensive as the minimum
requirements set forth in the chart below and in the Franchise Agreement (Franchise Agreement, Article
8). You must consult your carrier representative to determine the level of coverage necessary for the
Franchised Business. Higher exposures may require higher limits.

Insurance Requirements

a) Coverage against direct physical loss or damage to real and personal property, including
improvements and betterments, written on a special form peril basis, including flood and earthquake,
if the relevant property is situated in a flood or earthquake zone, in an amount equal to 100% of the
Franchised Business’ property value;

b) Comprehensive general liability insurance, written on an occurrence basis, extended to include
contractual liability, products and completed operations, and personal and advertising injury, with a
combined bodily injury and property damage limit of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence and
$2,000,000 in the aggregate;

¢) Statutory workers’ compensation insurance and employers’ liability insurance as required by the
law of the state in which the Franchised Business is located, including statutory workers’ compensation
limits and employers’ liability limits of at least $1,000,000;
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d) Business automobile insurance, including liability insurance coverage for hired and non-owned
automobiles, with a combined single bodily injury and property damage limit of at least $1,000,000
per occurrence;

¢) Business interruption insurance equal to 12 months of your net income and continuing expenses
including Royalty Fees;

f) Commercial umbrella liability insurance with total liability limit of at least $1,000,000;

g) Cyber insurance in the amount of at least $1,000,000 protecting against first party and third party
claims;

h) Employment practices liability insurance with a limit of at least $2,000,000 including actions of a
third party and a minimum limit of $100,000 for wage and hour disputes; and

i) All other insurance that we require in the Manuals or that is required by law or by the lease or
sublease for the Franchised Business.

Purchase Agreements and Cooperatives

We may, in our discretion, negotiate purchase agreements, including price terms, with designated suppliers
for source restricted goods and services on behalf of the System. We may establish preferred vendor
programs with suppliers on behalf of some or all of the Impresa Modular Businesses under the System and,
in doing so, we may limit the number of approved vendors and/or suppliers that you may purchase from
and we may designate one vendor as your sole supplier. Presently there are no purchase or supply
agreements in effect for source restricted products or services and there are no purchasing or distribution
cooperatives that you must join. You will not receive any material benefits for using our designated or
approved suppliers.

Our Right to Receive Compensation and Our Revenue from Source Restricted Purchases

We and/or our affiliates may receive rebates, payments and other material benefits from suppliers based on
franchisee purchases and we reserve the right to institute and expand rebate programs in the future. During
the fiscal year ending December 31, 20242023, we did not collect any rebates from franchisee purchases.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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ITEM 9

FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS

This table lists your principal obligations under the franchise and other agreements. It will help you
find more detailed information about your obligations in these agreements and in other items of this

Disclosure Document.

Disclosure

Obligation Articles in Agreement Document Item
a. _ Site selection and acquisition/lease 2.A 7,11
b.  Pre-opening purchases and leases 3,8 7,8
c.  Site development and other pre-opening 3,4,7,8,9B 6,7, 11
requirements
d.  Initial and ongoing training 4,71 11
e.  Opening 2,3,4,9B 11
f. Fees 3,4.A,5,9,12,13,14,15,16,18.N. | 5,6,7
g.  Compliance with standards and policies/manual | 3,4,7,8,9, 12 8, 11
h.  Trademarks and proprietary information 6,7, 11 13,14
i.  Restrictions on products and services offered 3,4C,7.A.,7E,7F, 71,8 8, 11,16
j.  Warranty and customer service requirements 7 16
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k.  Territorial development and sales quotas 2 12
I.  Ongoing product and service purchases 3,4C, 5,7 8
m  Maintenance, appearance and remodeling 7 7,17
. requirements
n. Insurance 8 7,8
0. Advertising 3.F,4.C,7.E,7.F, 9,11 6,11
p-  Indemnification 10 6
q-  Owner’s participation, management, and 4,6,7 11,15
staffing
r.  Records and reports 5,12 6
s.  Inspections and audits 13 6,11
t.  Transfer 14 17
u.  Renewal 15 17
v. _ Post-termination obligations 6,17, 18 17
w__ Non-Competition Covenants 6,17, 18 17
X. _ Dispute Resolution 18.F, 18.G 17
y. Individual guarantee of franchisee obligations 2.C,6,14.C, 14E 9
ITEM 10
FINANCING

We do not offer direct or indirect financing. We do not guarantee any note, lease or other obligation on
your behalf.

-[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

ITEM 11
FRANCHISOR’S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING,
COMPUTER SYSTEMS AND TRAINING

Except as listed below, we are not required to provide you with any assistance.

Pre-Opening Obligations

1. Grant of Franchise — We will grant to you the right to operate the Franchised Business within a designated
operating territory. (Franchise Agreement, Article 2);

2. Site Review, and Approval of Operating Territory — At the time of signing your Franchise Agreement
you will have selected and we will have approved of the Operating Territory within which you will operate
the Franchised Business;

3. Manuals — We will provide you with access to our confidential and proprietary Manuals. You must
operate the Franchised Business in accordance with the Manuals and all applicable laws, rules and
regulations. At all times, we reserve the right to supplement, modify and update the Manuals. (Franchise
Agreement, Article 4.C.). The operations manual as of the Issuance Date of this Disclosure Document
currently consists of 327 pages and the table of contents to the operations manual is attached as Exhibit C
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to this Disclosure Document (Franchise Agreement, Article 4). Major subjects contained in the operations
manual consists of establishing, developing, marketing and operating the Franchised Business;

4. Approved Suppliers and Distributors — We will provide you with a list of our approved suppliers and
distributors, to the extent that we have designated them, either as part of the Manuals or otherwise in writing.
(Franchise Agreement, Articles 3 and 4);

5. Signs, Equipment, Furniture, and Fixtures — We will provide you with a list of our approved signage,
equipment, furniture and fixtures, to the extent that we have designated them, either as part of the Manuals
or otherwise in writing and we will review and approve, in our discretion, your proposed signage,
equipment, furniture and fixtures. We do not provide assistance in delivering or installing signs, equipment,
furniture, or fixtures. (Franchise Agreement, Articles 3 and 4);

6. Website and Digital Media — We will identify and locate your Impresa Modular Business on our website.
We strictly control how you may or may not use websites and digital media and you must assign all website
media and digital media accounts to us. (Franchise Agreement, Articles 3.F. and 9); and

7. Initial Training — Not less than 45 days prior to the opening of your Impresa Modular Business you or
your Managing Owner and one management level employee or Owner must attend and complete our initial
training program. We will provide you (and up to one of your designated managers) with training in
accordance with our initial training program. (Franchise Agreement, Article 4). Our current training
program is to be attended by you, or if you are a Corporate Entity, your Managing Owner and one Operating
Manager at our training facility located in Martinsburg, West Virginia. The training program takes place
over an approximate three week period and is described below in this Item 11 in more detail.

Site Selection

If permitted by local law, you may locate your Sales Office within your home residence. Otherwise, you
are responsible for selecting a site for your Sales Office and must obtain our approval of your selected
location. We do not typically own or lease the real property that will serve as your Sales Office and you are
responsible for all costs and expenses in locating and evaluating proposed sites for your Sales Office. We
will provide you with site selection guidelines.

Within 30 days of our written receipt and submission of all information and documentation that we may
request, we will respond to your proposed request for our approval or disapproval of the proposed location
of your Sales Office. Factors that into consideration include: characteristics of the proposed site; whether
or not the proposed site meets our criteria for non-retail back-office operations; and the location of your
proposed site relative to your overall Operating Territory and proximity to other franchisee operating
territories. Subject to our approval, you must secure and designate the location of your Sales Office within
six months of signing your Franchise Agreement. If you cannot find an approved Sales Office within nine
months, your Franchise Agreement may be terminated and your initial fee is non-refundable.

Time to Open
You may not open your Impresa Modular Business until you have completed our initial training

requirements, obtained the necessary licensing and authorization from state and regulatory agencies within
your Operating Territory and have obtained and provided us with written proof of the required insurance.
Within nine months from the signing of your Franchise Agreement you must open and offer services and
products of your Impresa Modular Business to the customers within your Operating Territory. We estimate
that the length of time between the signing of your Franchise Agreement and opening your Impresa Modular
Business to be three to nine months. Factors that may affect this estimated time period include, the length
of time undertaken by you to satisfactorily complete our initial training program, obtaining third party
lender financing, if necessary, obtaining the necessary licenses, training staff, and leasing and wrapping a
service vehicle that meets our standards and specifications.
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Post-Opening Obligations

1. Communication of Operating Standards — We may establish, update and provide you with consultations
and communications as to the standards, procedures and System requirements as to the operation of your
Impresa Modular Business including, but not limited to, Approved Services and Products, System Building
Materials and Supplies, marketing and promotion standards, and as we may, in our discretion, designate,
modify, supplement and amend from time to time and, as set forth in the Manuals. (Franchise Agreement,
Articles 4.B. and 4.C.);

2. Marketing Standards and Approval — We will establish, update and communicate to you our standards
for the marketing and promotion of the Franchised Business including, but not limited to, the marketing
media that you may use. We will respond to your request respecting the communication of our approval or
disapproval of marketing media that may be requested by you for use in the marketing and promotion of
the Franchised Business. We maintain full discretion as to the marketing standards and the marketing media
may be used in the marketing and promotion of your Impresa Modular Business (Franchise Agreement,
Article 4.B.);

3. Approved Vendors — We will provide the names and addresses of approved vendors and suppliers for
the Approved Services and Products and the System Building Materials and Supplies. (Franchise
Agreement, Articles 4.B. and 4.C.);

4. Annual System Conference — We may, in our discretion, coordinate an annual conference to be attended
by franchisees of the System that are in good standing. We may charge an annual conference fee not
exceeding $1,000. You will be responsible for all travel and accommodation expenses associated with your
attendance at the conference. (Franchise Agreement, Article 4.B.);

5. Supplemental Training — We may require that you and your Operating Manager participate in
supplemental on-site training that we may designate and require in our discretion. If you are not meeting
what we believe to be System performance standards, we may provide, in our discretion, supplemental
training on-site within your Operating Territory. You will be required to pay our then current supplemental
training fee, which is currently $500 per on-site trainer per day, plus travel expenses, meals and
accommodation expenses incurred by us. (Franchise Agreement, Article 4.A.);

6. Initial Training for Replacement Operating Managers — Your Operating Manager must complete, to our
satisfaction, our initial training program. We will offer and make available to your replacement Operating
Manager our initial training program which must be completed to our satisfaction. The initial training
program will be provided by us at the facilities that we designate that, presently, is comprised of our Impresa
Modular Business located Martinsburg, West Virginia and at the certified training Impresa Modular
Business that we designate in West Virginia. You will be required to pay our then current supplemental
training fee for replacement Operating Manager, which is currently $500 per manager per day for each
replacement manager attending our initial training. (Franchise Agreement, Articles 4.A. and 4.C.);

7. Administration of Marketing Funds — We may administer and manage System-wide marketing funds
comprised of a Brand Development Fund and/or Advertising Cooperative. (Franchise Agreement, Articles
9.A. and 9.G.);

8. Hiring and Training of Employees — We do not provide assistance with the hiring and training of your
employees. You will be directly responsible for the management and supervision of your employees. For
the protection of the System you must ensure that all employees wear and maintain the proper uniforms
with our approved System branded apparel and uniforms including, but not limited to the apparel and
uniforms comprising System Building Materials and Supplies. You must monitor and ensure that all System
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Building Materials and Supplies and Approved Services and Products are prepared, maintained, and served
in accordance with the System standards and Manuals; and

9. Pricing — You will exclusively determine the prices that you charge for the Approved Services and
Products served and sold by your Impresa Modular Business. However, we may suggest pricing levels that
we recommend.

Advertising

1. Generally — All advertising, marketing, marketing materials and all marketing mediums used by you in
the marketing and promotion of your Impresa Modular Business must be pre-approved by us in writing and
conform to our standards and specifications. You may only utilize those advertising and marketing materials
and mediums that we designate and approve in writing. In our discretion, we may make available to you
approved marketing templates comprised of pre-approved ads, ad copy and digital media that you may
utilize at your own expense. If you wish to utilize marketing materials and/or marketing mediums that are
not currently approved by us in writing, you may submit a written request requesting permission and we
will approve or disapprove of your request within 15 days of your submission of the written request and
sample marketing materials. We are not required to spend any amount on your behalf on advertising in your
Operating Territory. (Franchise Agreement, Article 9);

2. Local Marketing — You are not authorized to engage in any marketing unless it is pre-approved by us
(Franchise Agreement, Article 9.B.), in our discretion. On an on-going monthly basis, you must spend not
less than $1,000 per month on the local marketing of your Impresa Modular Business to customers located
within your Operating Territory and in accordance with our standards and specifications. We will review
your local marketing programs and notify you if we approve same. We will make available to you and
provide you with access, in the form of a source document, to our approved marketing campaigns, media,
and messaging that may be used by you. In those instances where we provide you with access to our
marketing campaigns, we provide you with the source designs, copy, and design specifications. However,
you will incur the direct costs associated with customizing, duplicating and using such marketing campaigns
and in having them printed, distributed and/or placed with media sources. (Franchise Agreement, Article
9;

3. Digital Media and Website — All digital media and marketing must be approved by us. We will designate
for your Operating Territory information about your Impresa Modular Business on the
www.impresamodular.com webpage or such other websites as we may designate for the System. (Franchise
Agreement, Article 9);

4. Brand Development Fund — We may control and administer a brand development fund (the “Brand
Development Fund”) (Franchise Agreement, Article 9.A.). As disclosed in Item 6 of this Disclosure
Document, you must contribute a sum not to exceed 1% of Gross Sales to the Brand Development Fund.
We may use the Brand Development Fund for market studies, research, service development, product
development, testing, research studies, technology development, advertising and public relations studies or
services, creative production and printing of advertising and marketing materials, advertising copy and
commercials, tracking costs, agency fees, administrative costs, which may include reimbursement for direct
administrative and personnel costs associated with advertising and public relations, and any other costs
associated with the development, marketing and testing of advertising, marketing and public relations
materials, and the purchase of media placement, advertising time and public relations materials in national,
regional or other advertising and public relations media in a manner determined by us, in our discretion, to
be in the best interest of the franchisees and the System. Our company and/or affiliate owned Impresa
Modular Businesses may but are not required to contribute to the Brand Development Fund. The Brand
Development Fund will be required to maintain unaudited financial records detailing its expenditures and
will make available to you (no more frequently than one time in any 12-month period) an unaudited
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accounting of how the monies contributed to the Brand Development Fund were spent each year. We are
not required to segregate the Brand Development Fund from our general operating funds and we are not a
fiduciary or trustee of the Brand Development Fund. The Brand Development Fund will not be used to
directly promote your Impresa Modular Business or the marketing area in which your Impresa Modular
Business will be located. (Franchise Agreement, Article 9.A.). We may utilize the Brand Development
Fund to develop and test various media and technologies for potential utilization and/or improvement of
the operations of Impresa Modular Businesses and the marketing of Impresa Modular Businesses. These
technology developments and/or improvements may relate, among other things, to our website and to the
interaction and potential enhancement of web offerings that may or may not be implemented on behalf of
Impresa Modular Businesses. You may or may not benefit from these technology developments and
improvements. (Franchise Agreement, Article 9.A.).

We may use the Brand Development Fund to compensate ourselves for administrative fees associated with
managing the Brand Development Fund and for our internal employee salaries, expenses and overhead
associated with or reasonably allocated to managing the activities of the Brand Development Fund and
performing services on behalf of the Brand Development Fund including, but not limited to, directing,
developing and managing media of the Brand Development Fund. We will not directly use the Brand
Development Fund to directly market the sale of Impresa Modular Business franchises, however the
advertising, marketing and brand development materials developed including, the System website, may
contain basic information as to the availability of Impresa Modular Business franchises for sale and contact
information for franchise inquiries.

As of December 31, 2024.2623 we have not collected the Brand Development Fund Fee but reserve our
right to do so in the future;

5. Local and Regional Advertising Cooperative — We possess the exclusive right to authorize, establish,
designate and de-authorize a local or regional advertising cooperative within those markets that we
designate. We will exclusively determine the geographic and other boundaries constituting each respective
cooperative and factors that we will consider include media markets including print, television and digital.
If we establish a cooperative within a market that includes your Impresa Modular Business you must
contribute to the cooperative in such amounts and frequency as determined by the cooperative. Members
of the cooperative will be responsible for administering the cooperative, including determining the amount
of contributions, marketing expenditures and allocations. However, we may require that cooperative
decisions be made based on approval of a simple majority of franchisee members based on one vote per
Impresa Modular Business located and a quorum of not less than 25% of the designated franchisee
cooperative members. If a cooperative exceeds nine franchisee members; we may require that the
cooperative establish formal governing documents. Each cooperative must prepare annual unaudited
financial statements that must be provided to each cooperative member for review. We reserve the right to
form, change, dissolve, or merge any advertising cooperative. If we elect to form a local or regional
cooperative or if a cooperative already exists as to the area of your Impresa Modular Business, you will be
required to participate in the cooperative in accordance with the provisions of our operations manual which
we may supplement and modify from time to time (Franchise Agreement, Article 9). You will not be
required to make contributions to a Local or Regional Advertising Cooperative in amounts exceeding 2%
of your Gross Sales. As of the Issuance Date of this Disclosure Document we have not established any local
or regional advertising cooperatives but reserve the right to do so in the future;

6. Advertising Council — We have not established an advertising council but reserve the right to do so in
the future. (Franchise Agreement, Article 9.A.); and

7. Marketing Management — You are required to spend not less than $1,000 per month on the marketing
management of your Impresa Modular Business, including digital marketing management. The marketing
management fee shall be paid to us or our approved vendor.
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Computer System

You are required to operate and maintain at least one new notebook computer to be used from your Sales
Office that must possess broadband internet access, and a tablet computer with broadband wireless internet
access for each service vehicle that you operate. You must use the Business Management System that we
designate. At all times, we will possess direct access to the Business Management System used by you and
we will have access to all information entered into these systems including, including information about
your sales and customers. Presently, the Business Management System that you will be required to utilize
and access is a version of Buildertrend. The cost of the computer system that you will be required to
purchase varies depending on your number of users with your estimated costs for a computer system being
$2,000 to $4,000. You are obligated to install the software upgrades and patches as provided by the
manufacturer of the computer and the Business Management System. You are responsible for hardware
repairs or replacement of systems that are no longer covered under warranty. Your estimated costs for the
maintenance, repair and updates for the computer systems is $1,500 per year. There are no contractual
obligations imposed on us to maintain, repair, update, or upgrade your computer systems. You will also be
required to utilize those customer reward programs and systems that we designate. There are no contractual
limitations on the frequency or cost of this obligation. We will have independent access to all of the
information and data that is electronically collected and stored on your Business Management System and,
as such, will have access to all data related to the sales, inventory and financial performance of your
Franchised Business.

Initial Training

If this is your first Impresa Modular Business, we will provide initial training for you or, if you are a
Corporate Entity, your Managing Owner, plus one designated manager. Either you or your Managing
Owner plus, your general manager, must successfully complete the initial training program to our
satisfaction no later than 45 days prior to the scheduled opening of your Impresa Modular Business. The
initial training program takes place over an approximate three week period. If more than two individuals
attend initial training you will be charged an additional fee per additional persons attending initial training.
Although we provide you, if you are a Corporate Entity, your Managing Owner, plus your general manager
with initial training at no additional fee or charge, you will be responsible for all travel expenses and
employee wages related to your attendance and completion of training. (Franchise Agreement, Article 4).
Currently, we provide our initial training program no less frequently than quarterly and on an as-needed
basis.

TRAINING PROGRAM
Classroom On the Job
Subject Training Training Location
(Hours) (Hours)
Franchise Orientation 4 0 Martinsburg, West Virginia
New Franchise — Modular Construction 24 0 Martinsburg, West Virginia
Management & Systems
Sales & Modular Home Design 8 0 Martinsburg, West Virginia
New Franchise — Factory Vendor Training 0 16 Vendor factory locations in
Pennsylvania and driving distance
from our headquarters in
Martinsburg, West Virginia
Advanced Sales Quoting 2 0 Martinsburg, West Virginia
Construction Manager — Modular Processes | 8 0 Martinsburg, West Virginia
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Classroom On the Job
Subject Training Training Location
(Hours) (Hours)
Construction Manager — Field Training — 0 16 Vendor factory locations in
Installation Pennsylvania and driving distance
from our headquarters in
Martinsburg, West Virginia
Construction Manager — Field Training — 0 16 Vendor factory locations in
Completion Pennsylvania and driving distance
from our headquarters in
Martinsburg, West Virginia
Purchasing Manager — Modular Pricing & 16 0 Martinsburg, West Virginia
Site Costing
Purchasing Manager — Job Budgets & 8 0 Martinsburg, West Virginia
Purchase Orders
Purchasing Manager — Costing & Change 8 0 Martinsburg, West Virginia
Orders
Advanced Purchasing 1 0 Martinsburg, West Virginia
Manager — Scope of Works & Quotes
Advanced Purchasing Manager — Adjusted | 1 0 Martinsburg, West Virginia
Job Budgets/Closing Jobs
Subtotal Hours 80 | 48 \
Total Hours 128

Instructional materials that will be used in the initial training process includes our Manuals, live instruction,
and handouts. Initial training will be conducted under the direction and supervision of our Founder,
President and CEO, Kenneth Semler. Since November 17, 2008, Mr. Semler has been and remains the
President of our affiliate Express Homes, Inc. based in Martinsburg, West Virginia. The level of experience
of our trainers will, at a minimum, include each trainer’s satisfactory completion of our initial training
program. In addition to initial training you will also be required to participate in and satisfy all other training
programs that we may designate respecting the Franchised Business. (Franchise Agreement, Article 4 and
7.L).

After the opening of your Impresa Modular Business, we reserve the right to require that you (or your
Managing Owner if you are a Corporate Entity) attend a system-wide training program (the “System-Wide
Training Program”) that we may establish in our discretion. If we establish a System-Wide Training
Program, the program will be offered from our affiliate owned Impresa Modular Business in Martinsburg,
West Virginia and you will be responsible for all travel and expenses, lodging, food, automobile rental
expenses, and employee wages that you incur in connection with your attendance. We will not require your
attendance at a System-Wide Training Program for more than a total of five days in any calendar year.

ITEM 12
TERRITORY

Your Location

Under the Franchise Agreement, we will grant to you the right to develop and operate one Impresa Modular
Business within a designated operating territory (your “Operating Territory”). Your Sales Office may be
located within your home or from a location that we approve of within your Operating Territory.

Grant of Territory
The scope of your Operating Territory will vary from the scope and size of the operating territories of other
franchisees in our System depending on local factors, market conditions, and the number of Territories that
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urchase at the time of signing your Franchise Agreement. A Territory, generally, will consist of a
geographic area that includes a population of approximately 250,000 people if you operate your Impresa
Modular Business as an Impresa Homes and approximately 3.000,000 people if you operate your Impresa
Modular Business as an Impresa Investor. Subject to availability, our approval, and payment of additional
Initial Franchise Fees identified in Item 5 of this Disclosure Document, you may add Additional Territories.
Each Additional Territory will consist of a geographic area that includes a population of approximately
250,000 people if you operate your Impresa Modular Business as an Impresa Homes and approximately
3.000.000 people if you operate your Impresa Modular Business as an Impresa Investor. Population is
determined in the aggregate and will be calculated based on raw data and without regard to demographics

or age.

At the time of signing your Franchise Agreement, we will designate your Operating Territory. The scope
of your Operating Territory will vary from the scope and size of the operating territories of other franchisees
in our System and will be determined by us based on population density, demographics, and geographical
boundaries. While there is no minimum size for an Operating Territory, if you operate your Impresa
Modular Business as an Impresa Homes. the scope and size of the area comprising your Operating Territory
will, generally, be a geographic area that contains a population of approximately 250,000 people—}, and if
you partieipate-in-our-operate your Impresa Community-program;Modular Business as an Impresa Investor

the scope and size of the area comprising your Operating Territory maywill, generally, be limited-to-the
antieipated-Communitya geographic area that contains a population of approximately 3.000,000 people.

Our determination as to the population within your Operating Territory will be made at the time of signing
your Franchise Agreement and will be based on raw data and without regard to demographics or other
qualifying factors. We may identify your Operating Territory by zip code, boundary streets, highways,
county lines, designated market area, and/or other recognizable demarcations.

Relocation

Your right to relocate your Impresa Modular Business and, thereby, your Operating Territory is not
guaranteed and approval of a relocation request by you is completely at our discretion. We evaluate
relocation requests on a case-by-case basis and consider factors such as operational history, the location of
your Operating Territory, our expansion plans, and other factors that, at the time of a relocation request, are
relevant to us.

Establishment of Additional Franchised Businesses
You do not have the right to establish additional Impresa Modular Businesses.

Options and Rights of First Refusal to Acquire Additional Franchises
You are not granted any options, rights of first refusal, or similar rights to acquire additional franchises.

Territory Rights
You will not receive an exclusive territory. You may face competition from other franchisees, from outlets

that we own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we control. However, during
the term of the Franchise Agreement, provided that you are not in default of your obligations to us or our
affiliates and except as to our Reserved Rights and out of territory rules set forth below, we will not open
and operate, and we will not grant another franchisee the right to open and operate an Impresa Modular
Business within your Operating Territory.

We and our affiliates reserve to ourselves the exclusive right on any and all terms and conditions that we
deem advisable and, without any compensation or consideration to you (Franchise Agreement, Article
2.D.), to engage in the following activities (our “Reserved Rights”): (a) operate and grant to others the right
to develop and operate Impresa Modular Businesses using the System and Licensed Marks outside your
Operating Territory, as we deem appropriate and irrespective of the proximity to your Operating Territory;
(b) acquire, merge with or otherwise affiliate with one or more businesses of any kind, including businesses
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that offer and sell products and services that are the same as, or similar to, your Impresa Modular Business,
and after such acquisition, merger or affiliation to own and operate and to franchise, or license others to
own and operate and to continue to own and operate such businesses of any kind, even if such businesses
offer and sell products and services that are the same as or similar to a the Franchised Business (but not
utilizing the Licensed Marks) within your Operating Territory; (c) be acquired by or merge with or
otherwise affiliate with one or more businesses of any kind, including businesses that offer and sell products
and services that are the same as or similar to the Franchised Business, even if such business or businesses
presently or, in the future, own and operate and franchise or license others to own and operate businesses
that offer and sell products and services that are the same as or similar to your Impresa Modular Business
(but not utilizing the Licensed Marks) within your Operating Territory; (d) use the Licensed Marks and
System to distribute the Approved Services and Products offered and sold by the Franchised Business or
products and services similar to the Approved Services and Products offered and sold by the Franchised
Business in alternative channels of distribution, within or outside your Operating Territory; (e) use the
Licensed Marks and System and to license others to use the Licensed Marks and System in connection with
Impresa Communitylnvestor Businesses within your Operating Territory; (f) if you operate the Franchised
Business as an Impresa Investor Business, use the Licensed Marks and (fSystem and to license others to
use the Licensed Marks and System in connection with Impresa Homes Businesses within your Operating
Territory; and (g) use the Licensed Marks and System and to license others to use the Licensed Marks and
System, to engage in all other activities not expressly prohibited by the Franchise Agreement.

Restrictions on Us from Soliciting or Accepting Orders in Your Territory

There are no restrictions on us from soliciting or accepting orders from customers inside your territory. We
reserve the right to use other channels of distribution, such as the internet, catalog sales, telemarketing, or
other direct marketing sales, to make sales within your territory using our principal trademarks or using
trademarks different from the ones you will use under the Franchise Agreement. We do not pay any
compensation to you for soliciting or accepting orders from inside your territory.

Soliciting by You Outside Your Territory and Territory Rules

You must operate your Impresa Modular Business and provide the Approved Services and Products of
exclusively within your Operating Territory. The marketing of your Impresa Modular Business must be
targeted to your Operating Territory and you are not permitted to directly solicit customers outside of your
Operating Territory. Provided that you do not engage in any Direct Solicitation of customers outside of
your Operating Territory or, within the Operating Territory of another Impresa Modular Business, you may
provide, subject to our written approval, Approved Services and Products within an Open Area or within
an Assigned Area, subject to the following definitions, rules and limited circumstances:

(a) You cannot engage in any Direct Solicitations outside of your Operating Territory. The term
“Direct Solicitation” refers to and means “communications and/or contacts occurring through
in person contact, telephone, mail, e-mail, direct mail, distributed print media, digital media
and/or other forms of marketing directed toward customers, potential customers or referral
sources of an Impresa Modular Business;

(b) You cannot provide Approved Services and Products in the operating territory of another
Impresa Modular Business (an “Assigned Area”), except if approved by us in writing and only
on a case-by-case basis;

(c) An “Open Area” is a geographic area that (i) is not an Assigned Area; and (ii) is located within
a 10 mile radius of your Operating Territory;

(d) You must obtain our written approval, in each instance, before providing Approved Services
and Products to a customer in an Open Area or Assigned Area; and
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(e) Once an Open Area becomes an Assigned Area you will no longer be authorized to provide
Approved Services and Products to any customers within the Open Area and you must turn
over to us, for the benefit of another Impresa Modular Business franchisee, all information and
records related to customers in the Open Area, however, we may allow you to service customers
within the operating territory of another Impresa Modular business on a case-by-case basis,
subject to the Out of Territory Royalty Rate of 9% of Gross Sales related to the Out of Territory
Customer. If we permit another franchisee to offer and provide Approved Services and
Products to a customer located within your Operating Territory, we may pay you 3% of Gross
Sales related to the Out of Territory Customer.

Competition by Us Under Different Trademarks

We do not have plans to operate or franchise a business under trademarks different from the Licensed Marks
that sells or will sell goods or services similar to those that will be offered by you through the Franchised
Business.

ITEM 13
TRADEMARKS

Under the terms of the Franchise Agreement, you will be granted a license to use the “Impresa Modular”
trademark and those other marks that we designate. Our affiliate Express Modular IP, LLC is the owner of
the Licensed Marks and has granted to us a license with an initial 20 year term and with automatic renewal
thereafter to use the Licensed Marks and to license our franchisees to use the Licensed Marks. We reserve
the right to supplement and modify the marks that you may or may not use in connection with the operations
of your Impresa Modular Business. You may only use the Licensed Marks as authorized by us in writing
and under the terms of your Franchise Agreement. You may not use the Licensed Marks in the name of any
Corporate Entity that you establish. Although the License Agreement may be terminated as a result of a
breach of the License Agreement, in the event of any termination of the License Agreement, our franchisees
will continue to maintain the right to use the Licensed Marks pursuant to the terms of their Franchise
Agreement.

Principal Trademarks Registered with the United States Patent and Trademark Office

The principal trademarks identified in the schedule below are a part of the Licensed Marks, our System, are
registered with the United States Patent and Trademark Office (the “USPTO”) and, unless otherwise
designated by us, will be used by you in the operations of the Franchised Business. As to these marks all
required affidavits have been filed with the USPTO.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

Mark USPTO Registration Number | Registration Type | Registration Date

Impresa Modular 6081963 Principal June 16, 2020

== 6028832 Principal April 7, 2020

6028834 Principal April 7,2020
AMOSS 6029265 Principal April 7,2020
Certified Modular Friendly 5910846 Supplemental November 12, 2019
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Advanced Modular Off-Site | 590403 Supplemental February 4, 2020
Solution

Modularize 6395750 Principal June 22, 2021
Designed for Better Living 6881293 Principal October 18, 2022
Impresa 6760306 Principal June 14, 2022
Impresa Homes 7068145 Principal May 30, 2023
ModCoach 7189535 Principal October 10, 2023
Do More With Modular 7166217 Principal September 12, 2023

August +75-6,
20242023

Impresa Realty 981381087468576 +A—Principal

As to our principal trademarks there are no currently effective material determinations by the USPTO, the
Trademark Trial and Appeal Board, any court, or the trademark administrator of any state. There are no
pending infringement, opposition or cancellation proceedings and no pending litigation involving our
principal marks. We know of no superior rights or infringing uses that could materially affect your use of
our principal marks or other related rights in any state.

You are required to provide us with written notice of all claims that you may become aware of concerning
the Licensed Marks including your use of the Licensed Marks and/or a claim associated with a third party’s
use of a trademark that is identical or confusingly similar to the Licensed Marks. We maintain the exclusive
discretion to take any and all actions or, to refrain from any action, that we believe to be appropriate in
response to any trademark infringement, challenge or claim. We possess the sole right to exclusively control
any and all litigation, legal proceedings, administrative proceedings and/or settlement(s) concerning any
actual or alleged infringement, challenge or claim relating to the Licensed Marks. You must sign all
documents, instruments and agreements and undertake the actions that we, with the advice of our legal
counsel, determine to be necessary or advisable respecting the protection and/or maintenance of our
interests in the Licensed Marks in any legal proceeding, administrative proceeding or as may be otherwise
determined by us. As to the foregoing, we will reimburse you for the reasonable out-of-pocket
administrative expenses that you incur and pay in complying with our written instructions.

We will protect your right to use the Licensed Marks and to protect you against claims of infringement and
unfair competition related to the Licensed Marks, provided that your use of the Licensed Marks is in
accordance with the Franchise Agreement, the Manuals, and is consistent with our instructions and the
license granted to you. We will indemnify you against direct damages for trademark infringement in a
proceeding arising out of your use of the Licensed Marks, provided your use of the Licensed Marks comply
with the terms of your Franchise Agreement, the Manuals, our written instructions to you and, you have
timely notified us of the claim, have given us sole control of the defense and settlement of the claim, and
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you are in compliance with your Franchise. If we defend the claim, we have no obligation to indemnify or
reimburse you with respect to any fees or disbursements of any attorney that you retain.

If any third party establishes, to our satisfaction and in our discretion that its rights to the Licensed Marks
are, for any legal reason, superior to any of our rights or of a nature that we believe, in our discretion, that
it is advisable to discontinue and/or modify the Licensed Marks, then we will modify and/or replace the
Licensed Marks and you must use the substitutions, replacements and/or variations of and/or to the Licensed
Marks and use the those trademarks, service marks, logos and trade names designated by us. In such event,
our sole liability and obligation will be to reimburse you for the direct out-of-pocket costs of complying
with this obligation, which you must document to our satisfaction, including, by way of example, alterations
in signage and replacement of marketing materials.

ITEM 14
PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

We do not own any rights to, or licenses in any patent or copyrights material to the franchise System. We
may copyright advertising materials and design specifications, our Manuals and other written materials and
items. We have not applied to the USPTO for the issuance of any patents.

You must keep as confidential our Manuals and any supplements to the Manuals. Our Manuals may take
the form of written materials and/or digitally distributed and stored materials and made available to you for
use in connection with the Franchised Business. The Manuals contain information about our System,
Approved Services and Products, System Building Materials and Supplies, proprietary products, marketing
systems, training, and confidential methods of operation. You must use all reasonable and prudent means
to maintain the Manuals and the information maintained in the Manuals as confidential and prevent any
unauthorized copies, recordings, reproduction, or distribution of the Manuals or the information contained
in the Manuals. You must restrict access to the Manuals to management level employees who sign a
confidentiality agreement with you and are required by you to maintain the confidentiality of the Manuals
and refrain from distributing or disclosing the Manuals and the information contained in the Manuals. You
must provide us with immediate notice if you learn of any unauthorized use of the Manuals or of the
information contained in the Manuals, or any infringement or challenge to the proprietary or confidentiality
of the information contained in the Manuals. We will take any and all action(s) or, refrain from taking
action, that we determine, in our discretion, to be appropriate. We may control any action or legal
proceeding we choose to bring. We need not participate in your defense or indemnify you for damages or
expenses in a proceeding involving a copyright or patent. If any third party establishes to our satisfaction,
in our discretion, that it possesses rights superior to ours, then you must modify or discontinue your use of
these materials in accordance with our written instructions.

ITEM 15
OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL
OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS

The Franchise Agreement requires that you or, if you are a Corporate Entity, your managing shareholder
or partner be personally responsible for the daily management and supervision of the Franchised Business
(the “Managing Owner”). We must approve your Managing Owner. Your Managing Owner must have
satisfactorily completed our initial training and must have obtained all required licenses and permits
necessary to operate an Impresa Modular Business within your Operating Territory.

You may hire a manager to assume responsibility for the daily management and supervision of the
Franchised Business only if: (a) the manager meets all of our minimum standards and criteria for managers;
(b) the manager completes our initial training program; (c) the manager signs a confidentiality agreement
approved by us. All of your employees and other agents and representatives who may have access to our
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confidential information must sign a confidentiality agreement approved by us. We do not require that the
manager own any equity interest in the franchise.

You and, if you are Corporate Entity, each of your members, shareholders and/or partners (collectively,
“Owners”), must personally guarantee all of your obligations to us under the Franchise Agreement. Each
Owner and Owner’s spouse must personally guarantee your obligations to us under the Franchise
Agreement. You and each Owner and spouse shall promise in writing that, among other things, during the
term of the Franchise Agreement you will not participate in any business that in any way competes with the
Franchised Business, and that for 24 months after the expiration of termination of the Franchise Agreement
(with said period being tolled during any periods of non-compliance), you will not participate in any
competitive business located within and/or servicing customers located within your Operating Territory
and a 25 mile radius surrounding your Operating Territory. Further you will not participate in any
competitive business located within and/or servicing customers located within a 25-mile radius of any other
Impresa Modular Business and/or the operating territory of any other Franchised Business. Your managers
and all other employees and agents with access to our confidential information will be required to sign a
confidentiality agreement.

ITEM 16
RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

You may only sell the Approved Services and Products as specified in the Manuals or otherwise approved
by us in writing and you may only sell the products and services required by us. We can change the products
and services that you must offer. There is no limitation on our right to change the products and services
offered sold by Impresa Modular Businesses. You are not limited to whom you may sell products and
services of your Impresa Modular Business, provided you do so exclusively within your Operating Territory
and as otherwise required by us and in compliance with the standards we determine for the System.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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ITEM 17
RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

This table lists certain important provisions of the franchise and related agreements. You should read these
provisions in the agreements attached to this Disclosure Document.

Article in

L Franchise
Provision Summary
Agreement

a. Length of the franchise term 2.B. The term of your Franchise Agreement is 10 years if you
operate your Franchised Business as an Impresa Homes

Busmess%t—ye&epemt&yew—%%eh&%d—l%u&mw

el b e T

Investor Business.

b. Renewal or extension of the term | 15 If you operate your Franchised Business as an Impresa
Homes Business or Impresa Investor Business and you meet
our conditions for renewal you may renew your franchise

for one addltlonal 10-year term. H—yewepew%eyem

additional term-

¢. Requirements for franchisee to 15 To renew your franchise you must be in compliance with
renew or extend the terms of your Franchise Agreement, provide us with 180
days prior written notice of your request to renew, sign our
then current form of Franchise Agreement and related
agreements for the renewal term, sign a general release in
our favor, pay a renewal fee, remodel and upgrade your
Impresa Modular Business to meet our standards and
specifications, and meet all other renewal requirements
contained in the Franchise Agreement. Your Owners must
be in compliance with their agreements with us, including
the Franchise Owner and Spouse Agreement and Guaranty,
and they must personally guarantee the terms of your
renewal Franchise Agreement which may contain terms
materially different from your current Franchise Agreement.

d. Termination by franchisee 16.B. You may terminate the Franchise Agreement if you are in
compliance with its terms, we are in material breach of the
Franchise Agreement, and we fail to cure the material
breach within 30 days of receiving written notice or, if the
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breach cannot be cured within 30 days, such period of time
that is reasonable to cure the material breach. Subject to
state law.

Termination by franchisor
without cause

Not
applicable

Not applicable.

Termination by franchisor with
“cause”

16.A.

We can terminate if you are in default of the terms of the
Franchise Agreement.

“Cause” defined-curable defaults

16.A.(3),
16.A.(4)

You have 10 days to cure a default where you fail to pay
any fees and/or obligations due to us and/or to an affiliate of
ours, or if you fail to pay a supplier without, as determined
by us, a legal justification., provided that the foregoing
defaults were not intentionally and knowingly in violation
of the Franchise Agreement. You will have 30 days to cure
a default where you, fail to: timely lease a location that we
approve for your Impresa Modular Business; timely develop
and open your Impresa Modular Business; operate your
Impresa Modular Business in accordance with the
specifications, standards, and requirements set forth in our
Manuals; develop or operate your Impresa Modular
Business in compliance with all federal, state, and local
laws, rules, and regulations, unless, such violation poses a
threat to public health or safety; maintain insurance
coverage that we require; comply with our standards,
systems or specifications as we may designate or as
otherwise designated in the operations manual; fail to
operate your Impresa Modular Business in conformity with
our System or otherwise violate the Franchise Agreement,
except as to events of default that are not curable.

h.

“Cause” defined-non-curable
defaults

16.A(1),
16.A(2)

The following are defaults that cannot be cured: three or
more instances where you commit a curable default,
whether or not you timely cured such default in each
instance; you intentionally and knowingly refuse to comply
with the terms of the Franchise Agreement, and/or the
standards specifications, and/or requirements set forth in the
operations manual and/or as communicated to you by us
from time to time; you intentionally, knowingly, or
negligently operate the Franchised Business in violation of
applicable laws, rules, and regulations and, in doing so,
create a foreseeable, imminent, and/or immediate threat to
the health and safety of others; you abandon the Franchised
Business or fail to maintain the required leasehold and/or
ownership interests in your Impresa Modular Business
Locations; you or your Owners intentionally made a
material statement or omission in questionnaires submitted
to us; the data, information, and/or records that you record
and/or submit to us are intentionally misleading or false;
you transfer or attempt to transfer the Franchised Business
or the ownership interests in your franchise company
without our approval; you disclose or permit the disclosure
of information contained in the operations manual and/or of
confidential information; you or your Owners engage in
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intentionally dishonest or unethical conduct that impacts our
System; you and/or your Owners breach and, if such breach
is capable of a cure, fail to timely cure another agreement
with us including the Owner and Spouse Agreement and
Guaranty; you and your Owners and managers fail to
complete, to our satisfaction, our initial and on-going
training programs; you fail to notify us of the misuse of
confidential information and you fail to protect same; you
misappropriate or misuse the Licensed Marks; you are
deemed insolvent, make an assignment for the benefit of
creditors, admit in writing your inability to pay debts; are
adjudicated bankrupt, file a voluntary bankruptcy petition or
have one filed against you, and/or you acquiesce to the
appointment of a trustee or receiver, or a court orders one;
execution is levied against the Franchised Business; a final
judgment is entered against the Franchised Business and is
not satisfied within 30 days; you are dissolved; a lawsuit or
action is commenced against the Franchised Business to
foreclose on a lien on equipment of the Franchised Business
and such action is not dismissed after 60 days; and/or real or
personal property used by the Franchised Business is sold
or levied by a sheriff or other law enforcement officer;
and/or you abandon or fail to continuously own and operate
the Franchised Business.

i.

Franchisee’s obligations on
termination/non-renewal

6,17

You must: pay all sums that you owe to us under the
Franchise Agreement and all other agreements with us;
cease owning and operating the Franchised Business; cease
representing yourself as a franchisee of ours; permanently
cease using and/or accessing the System, the Licensed
Marks, our confidential information, the operations manual,
the Business Management System, the Business
Management System Data, and the System Building
Materials and Supplies; return the operations manual and all
confidential information to us in the original form provided
to you and document the destruction of all electronic files
related to same; completely de-identify the location and/or
facility associated with the Franchised Business; as
requested by us, transfer to us all data, telephone listings,
digital media, accounts, web listings and websites
associated with the Franchised Business; and abide by the
post-termination non-competition covenants and
restrictions.

Assignment of the contract by
franchisor

14.A

No restriction on our right to assign.

“Transfer” by franchisee-
definition

A transfer means and includes, whether voluntary or
involuntary, conditional or unconditional, direct or indirect:
(a) an assignment, sale, gift, transfer, pledge or sub-
franchise; (b) the grant of a mortgage, charge, lien or
security interest, including, without limitation, the grant of a
collateral assignment; (c) a merger, consolidation, exchange
of shares or other ownership interests, issuance of additional
ownership interests or securities representing or potentially

7.2025

41

Impresa Modular FDD. February+6:2024March




representing ownership interests, or redemption of
ownership interests; and (d) a sale or exchange of voting
interests or securities convertible to voting interests, or an
agreement granting the right to exercise or control the
exercise of the voting rights of any holder of ownership
interests or to control the operations or affairs of
Franchisee.

Franchisor’s approval of transfer
by franchisee

Transfers require our prior written consent, which may be
granted or withheld in our discretion.

m. Conditions for franchisor’s
approval of transfer

14.C.

For approval of your transfer, you must provide us with 30
days prior written notice of the proposed transfer; you and
your Owners must not have defaulted in your obligations
under the Franchise Agreement and all other agreements
with us; you and your Owners must be in compliance with
your obligations under the Franchise Agreement and all
other agreements with us; the transferee must agree to be
bound by all of the terms and provisions of the Franchise
Agreement; the transferee’s owners and their spouses must
personally guarantee all of the terms and provisions of the
Franchise Agreement; you and your Owners and their
spouses must sign a general release in favor of us; the
transfer must provide for the assignment and/or ownership
of the approved location for the Franchised Business, and
the transferees continued use and occupancy of such
location throughout the term of the Franchise Agreement;
the assets of the Franchised Business must be transferred to
the transferee; the transferee and the transferee’s owners
and managers, at the transferee’s expense must complete
our training programs; we waive our right of first refusal;
and we approve of the transfer and transferee in writing and
subject to our discretion; and you pay the Transfer Fee
(subject to applicable state laws).

Franchisor’s right of first refusal
to acquire franchisee’s business

We have the right to match any offer to purchase your
Impresa Modular Business or the Corporate Entity operating
your Impresa Modular Business.

Franchisor’s option to purchase
franchisee’s business

Not
applicable

Not applicable.

Death or disability of franchisee

14.D.

If you are an individual, within 30 days of the death or
permanent disability of Franchisee, your executor and/or
legal representative must appoint an Operating Manager
approved by us and within 60 days of such appointment the
Operating Manager must complete, to our satisfaction, our
initial training program. Within 12 months of the date of
death or disability, the Franchise Agreement must be
transferred to a transferee approved by us and otherwise
transferred in accordance with the terms of the Franchise
Agreement. If the franchisee is a Corporate Entity, within
30 days of the death or permanent disability of your
Managing Owner, if there are other Owners, must appoint a
replacement Operating Manager approved by us and within
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60 days of such appointment the replacement Operating
Manager must complete, to our satisfaction, our initial
training program.

Non-competition covenants
during the term of the franchise

No involvement in any competitive business and must
comply with confidentiality, non-disclosure and non-
solicitation covenants.

Non-competition covenants after
the franchise is terminated or
expires

No involvement, ownership or interest whatsoever for 24
months in any competing business in: your Operating
Territory; a 25-mile radius of your Operating Territory; a
25-mile radius of the Operating Territory of any other
Impresa Modular Business; and you must comply with
confidentiality, non-disclosure and non-solicitation
covenants.

Modification of the agreement

Requires writing signed by you and us, except for unilateral
changes that we may make to the Manuals or our unilateral
reduction of the scope of a restrictive covenant that we may
make in our discretion.

Integration/merger clauses

Only the terms of the Franchise Agreement and schedules to
the Franchise Agreement and the respective signed exhibits
to the Franchise Agreement are binding, subject to state
law. Nothing in any agreement is intended to disclaim the
express representations made in the Franchise Disclosure
Document, its exhibits and amendments.

Dispute resolution by arbitration
or mediation

Except for certain claims for injunctive relief, all disputes
must first be submitted to non-binding mediation in
Berkeley County, West Virginia and, if mediation is
unsuccessful, then to binding arbitration in Berkeley
County, West Virginia. This provision is subject to
applicable state law.

Choice of forum

All mediation, arbitration and, if applicable, litigation
proceedings must be conducted in, or closest to, State court
of general jurisdiction that is within or closest to Berkeley
County, West Virginia or, if appropriate, the United States
District Court nearest to our corporate headquarters at the
time such action is filed. This provision is subject to
applicable state law.

Choice of law

West Virginia law will govern. However, this provision is
subject to state law and as otherwise disclosed in Exhibit H
to this Disclosure Document.

in our management.

ITEM 18
PUBLIC FIGURES

We do not currently use any public figure to promote our franchise. No public figure is currently involved
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ITEM 19

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or potential financial
performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a reasonable basis for the
information, and if the information is included in the disclosure document. Financial performance
information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only if: (1) a franchisor provides the
actual records of an existing outlet you are considering buying; or (2) franchisor supplements the
information provided in this Item 19, for example, by providing information about possible performance at
a particular location or under particular circumstances.

We do not make any representations about a franchisee’s future financial performance or the past financial
performance of company-owned or franchised outlets. We also do not authorize our employees or
representatives to make any such representations either orally or in writing. If you are purchasing an existing
outlet, however, we may provide you with the actual records of that outlet. If you receive any other financial
performance information or projections of your future income, you should report it to the franchisor’s
management by contacting Kenneth B. Semler, Express Modular Franchising, LLC at +586-Winchester204
Lutz Avenue, Martinsburg, West Virginia 25404 and (866) 622-2906, the Federal Trade Commission, and
the appropriate state regulatory agencies.
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ITEM 20
OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION

TABLE NO. 1
SYSTEMWIDE OUTLET SUMMARY
FOR YEARS 20212022 to 2024

2023
Outlets at the Start | Outlets at the End
Outlet Type Year of the Year of the Year Net Change

20222021 02 23 +21
Franchised 20222023 23 35 +12
20232024 35 510 +25

C 20222021 1 1 0

gvr;gggy 20222023 1 1 0
20232024 1 12 0+1
20222021 13 34 +21
Total Outlets 20232022 34 6 12
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[ 20232024 ] 46 | 61 | +26

TABLE NO. 2
TRANSFER OF OUTLETS FROM FRANCHISEES TO NEW OWNERS
(OTHER THAN THE FRANCHISOR)

FOR YEARS 20212022 to 20242023

State Year Number of Transfers
20222021+ 0

None 20232022 0
20232024 0

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

TABLE NO. 3
STATUS OF FRANCHISED OWNED OUTLETS
FOR YEARS 26212022 to 2024
2023

State

Ceased
Operations
for Other
Reasons

O Elis e Outlets Termination Non- e

Year Start of by
Opened s Renewals .

Year Franchisor

Outlets at
End of
Year

OhieGeorgia
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20232024

Kentucky

2022

2023

2024
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Ohio 2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2023 10 01 0 0 0 0 1
Virotiia 20212024 o1 10 0 0 0 0 1
South 2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Carolina 2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
- 2024 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
Virginia 2022 1 1 0 0 0 0 2
2023 2 1 0 0 0 0 3
2024 3 0 0 0 0 0 3
20212022 092 21 0 0 0 0 3
Totals 2022 2 1+ 4] 9 4 9 3
2023 3 2 0 0 0 0 5
2024 3 S 0 0 0 0 10
TABLE NO. 4
STATUS OF COMPANY OWNED OUTLETS
FOR YEARS 20212022 to 20232024
Outlets
Outlets at . Outlets Outlets at
State Year Start of S Reacquired S Sold to End of
Year Oimeme! by' Sz Franchisee Year
Franchisor
20242022 1 0 0 0 0 1
West Virginia | 20222023 1 0 0 0 0 1
20232024 1 01 0 0 0 12
20242022 1 0 0 0 0 1
Totals 20232022 1 0 0 0 0 1
20232024 1 [ 0 0 0 12
[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
TABLE NO. §
PROJECTED OPENINGS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 20232024
Franchise Agreement Projected New Projected New Company
State Signed but Outlet Not | Franchised Outlets in the Owned Outlets in the
Opened Next Fiscal Year Next Fiscal Year
North Carolina 0 1 0
South Carolina 0 2 0
Virginia 0 2 0
Totals 0 5 0

Notes to Tables:

If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you leave
the franchise system.

During the last three fiscal years, no current or former franchisees have signed confidentiality clauses with
us that restrict them from discussing with you their experiences as a franchisee in our franchise system.

7.2025
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There are no trademark-specific franchisee organizations associated with the franchise system being offered
in this Franchise Disclosure Document.

Exhibit F to this Disclosure Document contains a list of our then current franchisees as of the end of the
Issuance Date of this Disclosure Document.

Exhibit G to this Disclosure Document contains a list of franchisees that had an outlet terminated, cancelled,
not renewed or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do business under our Franchise Agreement
during our most recently completed fiscal year or who has not communicated with us within 10 weeks of
the Issuance Date of this Disclosure Document.

ITEM 21
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Attached as Exhibit D is our audited end of year financial statements for 2024,-2022, 2023, and 26232024.
We were established on May 17, 2019 and our fiscal year ends on December 31.

ITEM 22
CONTRACTS

Attached to this Disclosure Document or to the Exhibits attached to and comprising the Franchise
Agreement attached to this Disclosure Document are copies of the following franchise and other contracts
and agreements in use or proposed for use:

Exhibits to this Disclosure Document

Exhibit E Franchise Agreement
Exhibit H State Specific Addenda

Schedules and Exhibits to the Franchise Agreement

Schedule 1 Operating Territory Acknowledgement

Schedule 2 Statement of Franchisee’s Owners

Schedule 3 Franchise Fee Acknowledgment

Exhibit 1 Franchise Owner and Spouse Agreement and Guaranty

Exhibit 2 Confidentiality Agreement

Exhibit 3 Assignment of Telephone Numbers and Digital Media Accounts
Exhibit 4 ACH Authorization Form

Exhibit 5 General Release

Exhibit 6 Impresa Investor Addendum

Individual state law may supersede the provisions contained in your Franchise Agreement respecting the
requirement that you execute a general release as a condition to assignment, sale or transfer. See, the state
specific addendums contained in Exhibit H of this Disclosure Document.

ITEM 23
RECEIPTS
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Two copies of a detachable receipt in Exhibit J are located at the very end of this Disclosure Document.
Please sign one copy of the receipt and return it to us at the following address Kenneth B. Semler, Express
Modular Franchising, LLC, 4586 Winehester204 Lutz Avenue, Martinsburg, West Virginia 25404. The
duplicate is for your records.

[THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT ENDS HERE]
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List of State Administrators

California

Department of Financial Protection and Innovation
320 West 4th Street, Suite 750

Los Angeles, CA 90013

2101 Arena Boulevard
Sacramento, CA 95834
1-866-275-2677

Connecticut

Connecticut Banking Commissioner
Department of Banking

Securities & Business Investments Division
260 Constitution Plaza

Hartford, CT 06103

Florida

Division of Consumer Services
Attn: Business Opportunities
2005 Apalachee Parkway
Tallahassee, FL 32399

Hawaii

Commissioner of Securities

Dept of Commerce & Consumer Affairs
Business Registration Division

335 Merchant St, Room 203

Honolulu, HI 96813

Illinois

Office of the Attorney General
Franchise Bureau

500 South Second Street
Springfield, IL 62706

Indiana

Indiana Secretary of State

Indiana Securities Division

Franchise Section

302 W. Washington Street Room E-111
Indianapolis, IN 46204

Kentucky

Office of the Attorney General
Consumer Protection Division
Attn: Business Opportunity
1024 Capital Center Drive
Frankfort, KY 40601

Maine

Department of Professional and Financial Regulations
Bureau of Banking

Securities Division

121 Statehouse Station

Augusta, ME 04333

Maryland

Office of the Attorney General
Securities Division

200 St. Paul Place

Baltimore, MD 21202

Michigan

Michigan Department of the Attorney General
Consumer Protection Division

Antitrust and Franchise Unit

670 Law Building

PO Box 30213

Lansing, MI 48909

Minnesota

Minnesota Department of Commerce
Securities Division

85 7th Place East, Suite 280

St. Paul, MN 55101

Nebraska

Nebraska Department of Banking and Finance
Commerce Court

1230 O Street, Suite 400, Lincoln, NE 68509

New York

NYS Department of Law
Investor Protection Bureau
28 Liberty Street, 21% Floor
New York, NY 10005
212-416-8222

North Carolina

Secretary of State

Securities Division

300 North Salisbury Street, Suite 100
Raleigh, NC 27603

North Dakota

Securities Department

600 East Boulevard Avenue, State Capitol
Fourteenth Floor Dept414

Bismarck, ND 58505-0510

Phone 701-328-4712
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List of State Administrators (continued)

Rhode Island

Department of Business Registration
Division of Securities

233 Richmond Street Suite 232
Providence, RI 02903

South Carolina

Office of the Secretary of State
1205 Pendleton Street

Edgar Brown Building, Suite 525
Columbia, SC 29201

South Dakota

Franchise Office

Division of Securities

910-E-Sieux124 S. Euclid Avenue, 2nd Floor
Pierre, SD 57501

Texas

Office of the Secretary of State
Statutory Document Section
1019 Brazos Street

Austin, TX 78701

Utah

Utah Department of Commerce
Division of Consumer Protection
160 East Three Hundred South
PO Box 146704

Salt Lake City, UT 84114

Virginia

State Corporation Commission

Division of Securities and Retail Franchising
1300 E. Main Street, 9th Floor

Richmond, VA 23219

Washington

Department of Financial Institutions
Securities Division

PO Box 9033

Olympia, WA 98507

360-902-8700

Wisconsin

Franchise Office

Wisconsin Securities Commission
PO Box 1768

Madison, WI 53701
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Agents for Service of Process

Express Modular Franchising, LLC
1586 Winehester204 Lutz Avenue
Martinsburg, West Virginia 25404
Attn: Kenneth B. Semler, President

California

Department of Financial Protection and Innovation

320 West 4th Street, Suite 750
Los Angeles, CA 90013

2101 Arena Boulevard
Sacramento, CA 95834
1-866-275-2677

Connecticut

Banking Commissioner

Department of Banking

Securities and Business Investment Division
260 Constitution Plaza

Hartford, CT 06103

Hawaii

Commissioner of Securities

Dept of Commerce & Consumer Affairs
Business Registration Division

335 Merchant Street, Room 203
Honolulu, HI 96813

Illinois

Illinois Attorney General
500 South Second Street
Springfield, IL 62706

Maryland

Maryland Securities Commissioner
200 St. Paul Place

Baltimore, MD 21202

Michigan

Michigan Department of Commerce
Corporation and Securities Bureau
6546 Mercantile Way

Lansing, MI 48910

Minnesota

Commissioner of Commerce of Minnesota
Department of Commerce

85 7th Place East, Suite 280

St. Paul, MN 55101

New York

Secretary of State of the State of New York
99 Washington Avenue

Albany, NY 12231

North Dakota

North Dakota Securities Department
Securities Commissioner

600 East Boulevard Avenue, State Capitol
Fifth Floor, Dept 414

Bismarck, ND 58505

Phone 701-328-4712

Rhode Island

Director of Department of Business Regulation
233 Richmond Street, Suite 232

Providence, RI 02903

South Dakota

Director, Division of Securities
Department of Commerce and Regulation
445 East Capitol Avenue

Pierre, SD 57501

Virginia

Clerk of the State Corporation Commission
1300 East Main Street, 1% Floor
Richmond, VA 23219

Washington
Securities Administrator
Washington Department of Financial
Institutions

150 Israel Road SW

Tumwater, WA 98501

Wisconsin

Wisconsin Commissioner of Securities
345 W Washington Avenue

Madison, WI 53703
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EXPRESS MODULAR FRANCHISING, LLC
Operations Manual Table of Contents

Section (Including Cover Pages) Number of Pages
Preface & Introduction 36
Establishing the Business 76
Personnel 87
Administrative Procedures 25

Daily Procedures 78
Marketing 25

Total Number of Pages 327
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DEeCkER ©~» COMPANY PLLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING

Warm Springs Business Center - 64 Warm Springs Avenue - Martinsburg, WV 25404

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Decker & Company PLLC hereby consents to the use in the Franchise Disclosure
Document issued by Express Modular Franchising LLC (“Franchisor”) on March 7, 2025
of our report dated March 6, 2025, relating to the audited financial statements of the
Franchisor as of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023.

Decker & Company PLLC

Martinsburg, West Virginia
March 7, 2025

Phone 304-263-0200 - Fax 304-263-0737 - www.deckerandcompany.com
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DeECKER ©* COMPANY PLLC

CERTIFIED PURLLC ACCOUNUING

Warm Springs Business Center - 64 Warm Springs Avenue - Martinsburg, WV 25404

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Member
Express Modular Franchising LLC
Martinsburg, West Virginia

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Express Modular Franchising LLC ("Company") which comprise the balance
sheets as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and the related statements of income and cash flows for the years then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Express Modular
Franchising LLC as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are required to be independent of Express Modular Franchising LLC and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of this financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the
financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the

financial statements.
In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

- Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Phone 304-263-0200 - Fax 304-263-0737 - www.deckerandcompany.cpa



- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Express Modular Franchising LLC's internal
control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

- Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we identified during the audit.

Decker & Companvy PLLC

Martinsburg, West Virginia
March 6, 2025



Express Modular Franchising LLC
BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2024 and 2023

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
Accounts receivable

Total current assets

OTHER ASSETS
Deferred franchise costs

Total assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Due to related parties

Total liabilities

Members equity
Balance at beginning of year

Net loss

Balance at end of year

Total liabilities and equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

ASSETS
2024 2023
$ 1,770 $ 2272
- 29,910
1,770 32,182
198,033 237,638
$ 199,803 $ 269,820
LIABILITIES
$ 35609 $ -
35,609 =
285,802 370,189
321,411 370.189
EQUITY
(100,369) (91,791)
(21,239) (8,578)
(121,608) (100,369)
$ 199,803 $ 269,820
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Express Modular Franchising LLC
STATEMENTS OF INCOME

For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

REVENUES
Franchise fees - sales
Franchise fees - royalties
Franchise fees - other
Franchise fees - rebates

Total revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Contract labor and related expenses
Embezzlement expense
Commissions
Amortized deferred franchise costs
Professional fees
Dues and subscriptions
Other expenses
Travel expenses
Annual conference
Advertising and promotion

Total operating expenses

NET LOSS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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2024 2023

$ 240,000 172,800
- 33,706

7,586 1,601

55,421 =
303,007 208,107
155,497 103,344
67,549 .

- 43,200

39,605 25,444

27,153 20,847

11,774 1,207

8,453 5,025

7,559 7,194

6,656 .

s 10,424

324,246 216,685
$ (21,239) (8,578)




Express Modular Franchising LLC
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

N
o
N
w

2024
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss $ (21,239) $ (8,578)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Amortization of deferred franchise costs 39,605 25,444
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 29,910 (29,910)
Increase in deferred revenue 35,609 -
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 83,885 (13,044)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net proceeds (to) from due from related parties (84,387) 14,018
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities (84,387) 14,018
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALEN’ (502) 974
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,272 1,298
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 1,770 $ 2,272

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Express Modular Franchising LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2024 and 2023

NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Express Modular Franchising LLC (“Company”) was formed on May 17, 2019. The Company was
established to offer and sell franchises for businesses known as “Express Modular” in the United States of
America pursuant to a non-exclusive license agreement between the Company and Express Modular IP,
LLC (the "Licensor”), an entity related to the Company by common ownership and control and was
approved to do so by the Federal Trade Commission on July 11, 2019. Franchisees will establish and
operate as builders of residential custom modular homes using experience, business systems, and proven
marketing strategies provided by the Company. Prior to January 1, 2021, the Company had sold no
franchises. As of the date of this financial statement the Company is in 11 filing states, 10 registration states
and 28 non-registration states and has sold five (5) franchises in 2024 and four (4) franchises in 2023.

The Company is headquartered in Martinsburg, WV and is seeking to offer and sell franchises nationwide.
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the accrual method of accounting in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP").
Under this basis, revenue is recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

The Company follows Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Topic 606), and recognizes revenue using a five-step process that includes: (1) identifying the
contract with a customer, (2) identifying the performance obligations within the contract, (3) determining the
transaction price, (4) allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations, and (5) recognizing
revenue when (or as) each performance obligation is satisfied. All revenue in the statement of operations
represents revenue from contracts with customers.

The Company's business strategy focuses on the sale of franchises nationwide. Initial franchise fees are
recorded as revenue at a point in time, when earned upon the opening of a franchise location. Consistent
with ASU No. 2021-02, the practical expedient is applied, making the accounting policy election to account
for all pre-opening services as a single performance obligation. Royalty Fees are ongoing income based
upon a percentage of franchisee’s gross monthly sales and are recognized as revenue when earned.
Technology Fees are ongoing income paid by franchisees on a monthly basis and are recognized as
revenue when earned. Rebates from manufacturers are recognized upon final construction and delivery of

homes.

If, in its discretion and judgment, the Company decides to establish either an Advertising Cooperative or a
Branding Development Fund as permitted by the Franchise Agreement, contributions from franchisees will
be recorded as a liability until such funds are expended. Contributions to the Advertising Cooperative and
Branding Development Fund are designated for sales and marketing-related initiatives, branding, and
advertising. The Company acts as an agent for the franchisees with regard to these contributions, and
therefore does not reflect those contributions in its statements of income.



Express Modular Franchising LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
December 31, 2024 and 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents. All of the Company’s cash accounts are FDIC insured. Cash balances in excess of FDIC
insurance limits, if any, are uncollateralized. Management considers this to be a normal business risk.

Accounts Receivable

Trade accounts receivable are stated at the amount the Company expects to collect. The Company
maintains allowances for credit losses for estimated losses resulting from the inability of its customers to
make required payments. Management considers the following factors when determining the collectability
of specific customer accounts: customer credit-worthiness, past transaction history with the customer,
current economic industry trends, and changes in customer payment terms. Past due balances over 90
days and other higher risk amounts are reviewed individually for collectability. If the financial conditions of
the customers were to deteriorate, adversely affecting their ability to make payments, additional allowances
would be required. Based on management's assessment, the Company provides for estimated
uncollectible amounts through a charge to earnings and a credit to a valuation allowance. Balances that
remain outstanding after the Company has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a
charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The balances of contract assets as
of the beginning and end of the year are as follows:

2024 2023 2022
Contract assets — receivables $ - $29,910 $ -
Allowance for credit losses - - -
Net $ - $29.910 $ -

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue includes franchise fees received in advance of being earned as set out in the franchise
contract. Deferred revenue for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 were $35,609 and $0,

respectively.
Advertising

Advertising costs are charged to operations when the advertising takes place. Advertising expense for the -
years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 were $0 and $10,424, respectively.

Income Taxes

The Company, with the consent of its Member, has elected to be taxed under the provisions of Subchapter
S of the Internal Revenue Code. In lieu of corporation income taxes, the members of an S corporation are
taxed on their appropriate share of the Company’s taxable income. Therefore, no provision or liability for
federal or state income taxes has been included in the financial statements. The Company has no tax
positions that must be considered for disclosure. The Company will file its tax returns in the United States
federal jurisdiction and in the states in which it does business. lIts returns will be subject to examination by
those jurisdictions generally for three years after they were filed.



Express Modular Franchising LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
December 31, 2024 and 2023

LICENSE AGREEMENT

The Company entered into an intellectual property license agreement with the Licensor for a non-exclusive
license for the use of certain trademarks, trade names, service marks, and all goodwill symbolized thereby,
which have been used in connection the Express Modular franchise system and businesses operated
thereunder. The terms of the agreement are for one year and shall renew automatically for successive
yearly periods until either party provides sufficient notice in accordance with the agreement.

DEFERRED FRANCHISE COSTS

Deferred franchisor costs consist of direct incremental costs relating to franchise sales for which revenue
had not yet been recognized and the costs shall be deferred until the related revenue is recognized.
Management estimates the Company will sell 38 franchises over a five (5) year period and its policy is to
amortize the deferred franchise costs of $286,237 evenly as it earns initial franchise fees revenue.

DUE TO RELATED PARTIES

The Company has received unsecured, non-interest bearing financing of the deferred franchise costs from
an entity related to the Company by common ownership and control in the amounts of $295,052 and
$379,439 as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The Company also advances unsecured, non-
interest bearing amounts to another entity related to the Company by common ownership and control in the
amount of $9,250 and $9,250 as of the December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

EMBEZZLEMENT EXPENSE

During 2024, the Company identified an embezzlement incident resulting in a loss of $67,549. The
fraudulent activity was conducted by a former employee and was discovered through internal review
procedures. Management has taken corrective measures, including strengthening internal controls and
pursuing legal action to recover the misappropriated funds. The loss has been recognized in the financial
statements under Operating Expenses as “embezzlement expense.”

GOING CONCERN

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as
a going concern. The Company'’s liabilities exceeded its assets by $121,608 at December 31, 2024. The
realization of the Company's assets is dependent upon future franchise fees and continued financing from
its related party. Management believes that actions presently being taken to revise the Company’s
operating and financial requirements provide the opportunity for the Company to continue as a going
concern within a year from the date of the auditor's report.

DATE OF MANAGEMENT’S REVIEW

In preparing these financial statements, management has evaluated events and transactions for potential
recognition or disclosure through March 6, 2025, the date the financial statements were available to be

issued.
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DECKER ©~» COMPANY PLLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING

Warm Springs Business Center - 64 Warm Springs Avenue - Martinsburg, WV 25404

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Decker & Company PLLC hereby consents to the use in the Franchise Disclosure
Document issued by Express Modular Franchising LLC (“Franchisor”) on February 16,
2024 of our report dated February 15, 2024, relating to the audited financial statements of
the Franchisor as of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022.

Decker & Company PLLC

Martinsburg, West Virginia
February 16, 2024

Phone 304-263-0200 - Fax 304-263-0737 - www.deckerandcompany.com
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'l DECKER v COMPANY PLLC

CERTIFIED PURLIC ACCOUNTINCGY

Warm Springs Business Center - 64 Warm Springs Avenue - Martinsburg, WV 25404

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Member
Express Modular Franchising LLC
Martinsburg, West Virginia

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Express Modular Franchising LLC ("Company") which comprise the balance
sheets as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and the related statements of income and cash flows for the years then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Express Modular
Franchising LLC as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are required to be independent of Express Modular Franchising LLC and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of this financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the
financial statements are available to be issued.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the

financial statements.
In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
- Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and

perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Phone 304-263-0200 - Fax 304-263-0737 - www.deckerandcompany.cpa



- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Express Modular Franchising LLC's internal
control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

- Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we identified during the audit.

Decker & Company PLLC

Martinsburg, West Virginia
February 15, 2024



Express Modular Franchising LLC
BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2023 and 2022

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
Accounts receivable

Total current assets

OTHER ASSETS
Deferred franchise costs

Total assets

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Due to related parties

Members equity
Balance at beginning of year

Net loss

Balance at end of year

Total liabilities and equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

ASSETS
2023 2022
$ 2,272 1,298
29,910 -
32,182 1,298
237,638 263,082
$ 269,820 264,380
LIABILITIES
$ 370,189 356,171
EQUITY
(91,791) (6,363)
(8,578) (85,428)
(100,369) (91,791)
$ 269,820 264,380
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Express Modular Franchising LLC
STATEMENTS OF INCOME

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

REVENUES
Franchise fees - sales
Franchise fees - royalties
Franchise fees - other
Franchise fees - rebates

Total revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Contract labor and related expenses
Commissions
Amortized deferred franchise costs
Professional fees
Advertising and promotion
Travel expenses
Other expenses

Total operating expenses

NET LOSS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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2023 2022

$ 172,800 $ 86,400
33,706 .

1,601 -

- 9,700

208,107 96,100
103,344 83,967
43,200 39,360

25,444 12,722

20,847 30,771

10,424 3,995

7,194 7,315

6,232 3,398

216,685 181,528
$ (8,578) $ (85,428)




Express Modular Franchising LLC
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

2023 022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss $ (8,578) $ (85,428)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Amortization of deferred franchise costs 25,444 12,722
(Increase) in accounts receivable (29,910) -
Increase in deferred franchise costs - (2,288)
Net cash (used) by operating activities (13,044) (74,994)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net proceeds from due from related parties 14,018 73,292
Net cash provided by financing activities 14,018 73,292
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALEN" 974 (1,702)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,298 3,000
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 2,272 3 1,298

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Express Modular Franchising LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2023 and 2022

NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Express Modular Franchising LLC (“Company”) was formed on May 17, 2019. The Company was
established to offer and sell franchises for businesses known as “Express Modular” in the United States of
America pursuant to a non-exclusive license agreement between the Company and Express Modular IP, LLC
(the “Licensor”), an entity related to the Company by common ownership and control and was approved to do
so by the Federal Trade Commission on July 11, 2019. Franchisees will establish and operate as builders of
residential custom modular homes using experience, business systems, and proven marketing strategies
provided by the Company. Prior to January 1, 2021, the Company had sold no franchises, earned no revenue
and incurred no operating expenses. As of the date of this financial statement the Company is in 7 filing
states, 9 registration states and 28 non-registration states and has sold four (4) franchises in 2023 and two (2)
franchises in 2022.

The Company is headquartered in Martinsburg, WV and is seeking to offer and sell franchises nationwide.
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the accrual method of accounting in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP").
Under this basis, revenue is recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.

Adoption of New Accounting Standard

On January 1, 2023, the Organization adopted Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2022-02, Financial
Instruments — Credit Losses (Topic 326). This ASU require that an entity measure and record lifetime
expected credit losses on certain financial instruments upon origination or acquisition and enhances
disclosure requirements for credit losses. There was not a material impact to revenue as a result of applying
ASU 2022-02 for the year ended December 31, 2023, and there have not been significant changes to the
Organization's business process, systems, or internal controls as a result of implementing the standard.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
certain reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recoghnition

The Company follows Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Topic 606), and recognizes revenue using a five-step process that includes: (1) identifying the
contract with a customer, (2) identifying the performance obligations within the contract, (3) determining the
transaction price, (4) allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations, and (5) recognizing
revenue when (or as) each performance obligation is satisfied. All revenue in the statement of operations
represents revenue from contracts with customers.

The Company's business strategy focuses on the sale of franchises nationwide. Initial franchise fees are
recorded as revenue at a point in time, when earned upon the opening of a franchise location. Consistent with
ASU No. 2021-02, the practical expedient is applied, making the accounting policy election to account for all
pre-opening services as a single performance obligation. Royalty Fees are ongoing income based upon a
percentage of franchisee's gross monthly sales and are recognized as revenue when earned. Technology
Fees are ongoing income paid by franchisees on a monthly basis and are recognized as revenue when
earned. Rebates from manufacturers are recognized upon final construction and delivery of homes.



Express Modular Franchising LLC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
December 31, 2023 and 2022

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue Recognition (Continued)

If, in its discretion and judgment, the Company decides to establish either an Advertising Cooperative or a
Branding Development Fund as permitted by the Franchise Agreement, contributions from franchisees will be
recorded as a liability until such funds are expended. Contributions to the Advertising Cooperative and
Branding Development Fund are designated for sales and marketing-related initiatives, branding, and
advertising. The Company acts as an agent for the franchisees with regard to these contributions, and
therefore does not reflect those contributions in its statements of income.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents. All of the Company’s cash accounts are FDIC insured. Cash balances in excess of FDIC
insurance limits, if any, are uncollateralized. Management considers this to be a normal business risk.

Accounts Receivable

Trade accounts receivable are stated at the amount the Company expects to collect. The Company
maintains allowances for credit losses for estimated losses resulting from the inability of its customers to
make required payments. Management considers the following factors when determining the collectability of
specific customer accounts: customer credit-worthiness, past transaction history with the customer, current
economic industry trends, and changes in customer payment terms. Past due balances over 90 days and
other higher risk amounts are reviewed individually for collectability. If the financial conditions of the
customers were to deteriorate, adversely affecting their ability to make payments, additional allowances would
be required. Based<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>